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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

Quarterly report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934
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or

O Transition report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) 6the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission file number 001-11499
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Delaware 04-291653€
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ¢ filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti or 15(d) of the Securities Excha
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (orsiech shorter period that the Registrant was reduddile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastie@s. YedX] NoO

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lsnstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥&b site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted puntsio Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the préwgd2 months (or for such shorter
period that the registrant was required to submitgost such files). Ydgl No[O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, m-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting

company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirgpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated fileX] Accelerated fileld

Non-accelerated fileO Smaller reporting compan
(Do not check if a smaller reporting compa

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exgje Act). Yedl No
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. Financial Statements
WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in millions, except share information)

(Unaudited)
July 1, December 31
2012 2011
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel $ 167.¢ $ 250.¢
Shor-term investment securitit 4.1 4.1
Trade accounts receivable, less allowance for dioludtcounts of $9.7 million at July 1, 2012 an
$9.1 million at December 31, 20: 223.% 207.1
Inventories, net
Raw materials 104.¢ 107.7
Work in proces: 22.¢ 28.7
Finished good 159.¢ 147.¢
Total Inventories 286.¢ 284.%
Prepaid expenses and other as 35.¢ 26.€
Deferred income taxe 27.¢ 28.2
Assets held for sal 14.5 4.€
Total Current Asset 760.3 805.5
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment, at c 487.¢ 494.¢
Accumulated depreciatic (275.5) (268.7)
Property, plant and equipment, | 212.] 226.7
OTHER ASSETS
Goodwill 490.t 490.¢
Intangible assets, n 149.t 154.¢
Deferred income taxe 9.1 10.z
Other, ne 9.8 10.1
TOTAL ASSETS $ 16317 $ 1,697t
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payabl $ 125¢ $ 126.t
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 117.¢ 109.z
Accrued compensation and bene 39.5 45.¢
Current portion of lon-term debt 77.C 2.C
Total Current Liabilities 359.¢ 283.¢
LONG-TERM DEBT, NET OF CURRENT PORTIO 308.1 397.4
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 55.¢ 58.2
OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 38.4 38.t
STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY:
Preferred Stock, $0.10 par value; 5,000,000 stear#®rized; no shares issued or outstan — —
Class A Common Stock, $0.10 par value; 80,000,0@0es authorized; 1 vote per share; issuec
outstanding, 27,844,816 shares at July 1, 20128m1,414 shares at December 31, 2 2.8 2.8
Class B Common Stock, $0.10 par value; 25,000,880es authorized; 10 votes per share; issued
and outstanding, 6,953,680 shares at July 1, 26d2B8December 31, 20: 0.7 0.7
Additional paic-in capital 432.3 420.]
Retained earning 475.2 515.1
Accumulated other comprehensive li (41.9) (19.0)
Total Stockholder Equity 869.1 919.¢
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY $ 1631 $ 1,697.t

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tsients.
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WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Amounts in millions, except per share information)

(Unaudited)
Second Quarter Endec Six Months Ended
July 1, July 3, July 1, July 3,
2012 2011 2012 2011

Net sales $ 3711 % 375.1 % 735.2 % 705.¢
Cost of goods sold 239.: 245.4 473.¢ 454.:

GROSS PROFIT 131.¢ 130.3 261. 251.C
Selling, general & administrative expen: 96.¢ 98.2 197.¢ 195.2
Restructuring and other charges 1.2 5.5 2.9 6.€

OPERATING INCOME 33.7 26.€ 60.€ 49.t
Other (income) expens

Interest incomi (0.2 (0.2 (0.9 (0.5)

Interest expens 6.1 6.7 12.5 12.¢

Other expense, net — 0.€ (0.9 0.7
Total other expense 5.8 7.1 11.C 12.¢
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE

INCOME TAXES 27.¢ 19.5 49.€ 36.7
Provision for income taxes 9.3 6.€ 15.4 12.7
NET INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATION! 18.t 12.¢ 34.Z 24.C
Income from discontinued operations, net of te — 1.7 — 1.7
NET INCOME $ 185 $ 14.¢ $ 342 $ 25.7
BASIC EPS
Net income per shar

Continuing operation $ 051 $ 032 $ 09: $ 0.64

Discontinued operations — 0.0t — 0.0t

NET INCOME $ 0.51 $ 03¢ $ 0.9 $ 0.6¢
Weighted average number of shares 36.E 37.¢ 36.7 37.¢
DILUTED EPS
Net income per shar

Continuing operation $ 051 $ 03¢ $ 09: $ 0.64

Discontinued operations — 0.0t — 0.0t

NET INCOME $ 0.51 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.9 $ 0.6¢
Weighted average number of shares 36.€ 37.€ 36.€ 37.7i
Dividends per share $ 011 $ 011 $ 02 $ 0.22

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tsients.
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WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (1$3)
(Amounts in millions)

(Unaudited)
Second Quarter Endec Six Months Ended
July 1, July 3, July 1, July 3,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Net income $ 185 % 14€ $ 34z % 25.%
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of
Foreign currency translation adjustme (39.7) 14.7 (23.2) 48.7
Defined benefit pension plar
Amortization of prior service cost included in petriodic
pension cos — 0.1 — 0.2
Amortization of net losses included in net periogénsion
cost 0.1 0.7 0.3 14
Defined benefit pension plans 0.1 0.8 0.3 1.€
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (39.6) 15.5 (22.9 50.3
Comprehensive income (loss) $ (21.7) $ 301 $ 112 $ 76.C

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tsients.
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WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in millions)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Less: Income from discontinued operations, nearés
Net income from continuing operatio

(Unaudited)

Six Months Ended

Adjustments to reconcile net income from continuapgrations to net cash provided by continu

operating activities
Depreciatior
Amortization
Stocl-based compensatic
Deferred income taxes bene

Loss on disposal and impairment of property, péard equipment and oth
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffetts from business acquisitions and

divestitures

Accounts receivabl

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other as

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitied

Net cash provided by continuing operatis
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipmi
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and egeip
Purchase of shc-term investment securitie
Proceeds from the sale of si-term investment securitit
Business acquisitions, net of cash acqu
Net cash used in investing activiti
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from lor-term debr
Payments of lor-term deb!
Payment of capital leases and ot
Proceeds from share transactions under employek glans
Tax benefit of stock awards exercis
Dividends
Payments to repurchase common st
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casyaénts
DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT?
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOI

NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of businesse

Fair value of assets acquir

Cash paid, net of cash acquil

Liabilities assume:

Acquisition of fixed assets under financing agreets
Issuance of stock under management stock purchias

CASH PAID FOR:
Interest

Income taxe:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.

July 1, July 3,
2012 2011
$ 34z $ 25.7
— 1.7
34.z 24.C
16.7 16.1
8.4 9.3
2.5 5.8
(0.5) (4.7)
04 0.5
(21.4) (14.0)
9.7) (14.7)
(9.2) (4.0)
2.5 2.4
23.€ 20.7
(9.6) (12.0
1.C 0.€
— 4.1
— 4.1
(17.5) (162.9)
(26.1) (174.%)
9.2 184.(
(22.€) (99.9)
(1.2) (1.9
6.C 3.C
04 04
(8.2) (8.9
(63.2) —
(79.€) 77.¢
(0.9) 13.2
(82.€) (62.5)
250.€ 329.2
$ 167.6 $ 266.7
$ 277 3 218.¢
17.5 162.€
$ 10z $ 55.¢
$ 06 $ 4.3
$ 04 $ 0.4
12.5 12.2
14.C 20.1
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WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudit)

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finant@ésments have been prepared in accordance witluatieg principles generally
accepted in the United States for interim finangifdrmation and with the instructions to Form 10a@d Article 10 of Regulation S-X.
Accordingly, they do not include all of the infortitan and footnotes required by accounting prin@menerally accepted in the United States
for complete financial statements. In the opimddmanagement, all adjustments (consisting of nbremurring accruals) considered
necessary for a fair presentation have been indludéhe Watts Water Technologies, Inc. (the Comgp&onsolidated Balance Sheet as of
July 1, 2012, the Consolidated Statements of Ojpeiafor the second quarter and six months endigdlJ2012 and July 3, 2011, the
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomtiéosecond quarter and six months ended July1® 26d July 3, 2011, and the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the simths ended July 1, 2012 and July 3, 2011.

The balance sheet at December 31, 2011 has begadiffom the audited consolidated financial staeta at that date. The accounting
policies followed by the Company are describechin€ompany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for therysraded December 31, 2011. The
financial statements included in this report shdaddead in conjunction with the consolidated ficiahstatements and notes included in the
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddzam31, 2011. Operating results for the interimqebpresented are not necessarily
indicative of the results to be expected for tharyending December 31, 2012.

The Company operates on a 52-week fiscal year gratirDecember 31st. Any quarterly or six- monttad@ntained in this Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q generally reflect the resultsperations for a 13-week period or 26-week periedpectively.

Certain amounts in the 2011 consolidated finarstelements have been reclassified to permit cosganwith the 2012 presentation. These
reclassifications had no effect on reported resfltsperations or stockholders’ equity.

2. Accounting Policies

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affecefh@ted amounts of assets and liabilities and asce of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the regamounts of revenues and expenses during theirepperiod. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Goodwill and Long-Lived Assets

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill bpgraphic segment are as follows:

Net
Gross Balance Accumulated Impairment Losses Goodwill
Acquired Foreign
Balance During Currency Balance Balance Impairment Balance
January 1, the Translation July 3, January 1, Loss During July 3, July 3,
2011 Period and Other 2011 2011 the Period 2011 2011
(in millions)
North America $ 2138 % 2t $ — $ 216 $ (220 % — $ (220 3 194.2
Europe, Middle East
and Africa (EMEA) 228.1 62.5 17.2 307.¢ — — — 307.¢
Asia 8.1 4.3 0.2 12.€ — — — 12.€
Total $ 4500 $ 69.5 $ 174 $ 5360 $ (22.0 $ — $ (220 3 514.7
Net
Gross Balance Accumulated Impairment Losses Goodwill
Acquired Foreign
Balance During Currency Balance Balance Impairment Balance
January 1, the Translation July 1, January 1, Loss During July 1, July 1,
2012 Period and Other 2012 2012 the Period 2012 2012
(in millions)
North America $ 215¢ $ 131 % (21) $ 226 $ (23.29) $ — 3 (23.2) $ 203.£
EMEA 285.: — (10.€) 274.F — — — 274.F
Asia 12.7 — (0.9 12.€ — — — 12.€
Total $ 513¢ $ 131 $ (13.0 $ 5137 $ (23.2) $ — $ (23.2) $ 490.5

On January 31, 2012, the Company completed thasitiqn of tekmar Control Systems (tekmar) in arshgurchase transaction. A designer
and manufacturer of control systems used in heatiegtilation, and air conditioning applicationskinar is expected to enhance the
Company’s hydronic systems product offerings inth®. and Canada. The initial purchase price paisl CAD $18.0 million, with post-
closing adjustments related to working capital andkar-out based on the attainment of certain future egs
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levels. The total purchase price will not exceédDC$26.2 million. The Company is accounting foe tihansaction as a business
combination. The Company completed a preliminamcpase price allocation that resulted in the rai@mmn of $13.1 million in goodwill an
$10.1 million in intangible assets. Intangibleeisonsist primarily of acquired technology withesstimated life of 10 years, distributor
relationships with an estimated life of 7 yearg] artrade name with an estimated life of 20 yedise goodwill is not expected to be
deductible for tax purposes.

Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets ssted for impairment at least annually or moegjfiently if events or circumstances
indicate that it is “more likely than not” that shenight be impaired, such as from a change in lassitonditions. The Company performs its
annual impairment assessment of goodwill and iméitefilived intangible assets in the fourth quadkeach year.

As of October 30, 2011, the annual impairment asialgiate, the fair value of the Company’s Europildi# East and Africa (EMEA)
reporting unit exceeded the carrying value by axiprately 9%. Operating results for the EMEA repagtunit have been hindered by the
downturn in the economic environment in Europe emrtinued to fall below expectations during theraionths ended July 1, 2012, trigge!
the decision to update the impairment analysis.a Assult of the updated fair value assessmewgstdetermined that the fair value of the
EMEA reporting unit continues to exceed its cargywralue, a result of a decrease in discount radeaaieduction of net debt offset by lower
short-term projections. The Company also perforarednalysis on the long-lived assets in the EM&porting unit as a result of the
triggering event and concluded that these assets mat impaired.

Should the EMEA reporting unit’'s operating resualégline further because the European marketplaegidates beyond our current
expectations or should interest rates increaséfisigmtly, then the reporting unit's goodwill ma lat risk for impairment in the future. The
EMEA reporting unit's goodwill balance as of July2D12 was $202.7 million.

Intangible assets with estimable lives and othegillived assets are reviewed for impairment whenevents or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset setagroup may not be recoverable. Recoverabiliiptaigible assets with estimable lives :
other long-lived assets are measured by a compaoistine carrying amount of an asset or asset girofyture net undiscounted pretax cash
flows expected to be generated by the asset or gisa@. If these comparisons indicate that antasset recoverable, the impairment loss
recognized is the amount by which the carrying amotithe asset or asset group exceeds the redatadated fair value. Estimated fair va
is based on either discounted future pretax operatash flows or appraised values, depending onahee of the asset. The Company
determines the discount rate for this analysis dasethe weighted average cost of capital baseatle@market and guideline public compar
for the related business and does not allocateeisiteharges to the asset or asset group beinginedasJudgment is required to estimate
future operating cash flows.

Intangible assets include the following:

July 1, 2012 December 31, 2011
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
(in millions)

Patents $ 16.2  $ (112 $ 51 $ 165 $ (10.9 $ 5.7
Customer relationshiy 132.] (63.9) 68.2 135.¢ (57.7) 78.1
Technology 28.1 (8.2 19.¢ 19.¢ (7.2) 12.7
Trade Name 13.C 1.9 11.7 13.4 (0.6) 12.€
Other 8.6 (5.5) 3.1 8.E (5.4) 3.1
Total amortizable intangible 198.1 (90.7) 108.( 194.( (81.¢) 1122
Indefinite-lived intangible asse 41.F — 41.F 42.4 — 42 4
Total $ 239.6 $ (90.1) $ 1495 $ 2364 $ (8L $ 154.¢

Aggregate amortization expense for amortizablengitzle assets for the second quarters of 2012 ahti &as $4.2 million and $5.3 million,
respectively, and for the first six months of 2@l 2011 was $8.4 million and $9.3 million, respety. Additionally, future amortization
expense for the next five years on amortizablenigjitsle assets is expected to be approximately $l&n for the remainder of 2012, $15.0
million for 2013, $14.8 million for 2014, $14.5 rindin for 2015 and $14.1 million for 2016. Amortikat expense is recorded on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of tharigible assets. The weighted-average remairfimgfitotal amortizable intangible assets is
10.0 years. Patents, customer relationships, téohypcarade names and other amortizable intangie® weighted-average remaining lives
of 6.9 years, 7.0 years, 12.2 years, 12.1 yearglaridyears, respectively. Intangible assets najestito amortization consist of certain
trademarks and trade names.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company maintains three stock incentive plameuwhich key employees and non-employee memli¢nge Company’s Board of
Directors have been granted incentive stock opt{t8®s) and nonqualified stock options (NSOs) techase the Company’s Class A
Common Stock. Only one plan, the 2004 Stock Ingerfilan, is currently available for the grant ofvrstock options, which are currently
being granted only to employees. Under the 2004lSincentive Plan, options become exercisable aeur-year period at the rate of 25%
per year and expire ten years after the grant ta@s and NSOs granted under the plans may haveisxe

8
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prices of not less than 100% and 50% of the faikketavalue of the Class A Common Stock on the datgant, respectively. The Compasy’
current practice is to grant all options at fairrked value on the grant date. The Company didswmte any stock options during the first six
months of 2012 and 2011.

The Company has also granted shares of restritiel ® key employees and stock awards to non-eyeplonembers of the Company’s
Board of Directors under the 2004 Stock IncentilanPwhich vest either immediately, or over a thyear period at the rate of one-third per
year. The restricted stock awards are amortizexkpense on a strai¢-line basis over the vesting period. The Companyndit issue any
restricted stock in the first six months of 2012l é&ssued 1,400 shares of restricted stock in tisedix months of 2011.

The Company also has a Management Stock PurchaisetRlt allows for the purchase of restricted stouks (RSUs) by key employees. On
an annual basis, key employees may elect to reegpartion of their annual incentive compensatioREUs instead of cash. Each RSU
represents one share of Class A Common Stock gnarébased by the employee at 67% of the fair ntaskdeie of the Company’s Class A
Common Stock on the date of grant. RSUs vest dlymuzer a three-year period from the grant date mateipt of the shares underlying
RSUs is deferred for a minimum of three years ahggreater number of years as is chosen by theogegl An aggregate of 2,000,000
shares of Class A Common Stock may be issued uhddflanagement Stock Purchase Plan. The Compantedré3,739 RSUs and 96,454
RSUs in the first six months of 2012 and 2011, eetpely.

The fair value of each RSU issued under the Managétock Purchase Plan is estimated on the daeanof, using the Black-Scholes-
Merton Model, based on the following weighted agerassumptions:

2012 2011
Expected life (years) 3.C 3.C

Expected stock price volatilit 38.2% 44.%
Expected dividend yiel 1.1% 1.2%
Risk-free interest rat 0.4% 1.2%

The above assumptions were used to determine tighted average grant-date fair value of RSUs of @8 %and $16.25 in 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

A more detailed description of each of these stk stock option plans can be found in Note 12 atellto Consolidated Financial
Statements in the Company’s Annual Report on Fd#K for the year ended December 31, 2011.

On May 23, 2012, William C. McCartney provided metof his intention to retire as Chief Financiafi€dr of the Company. On June 14,
2012, the Company entered into a retention agreewiémMr. McCartney. Pursuant to the retentiomezgnent, Mr. McCartney will contint
employment with the Company until December 14, 284@ will assist the Company in identifying a siesme and transitioning his
responsibilities and duties to the new Chief Fi@nOfficer. Pursuant to Mr. McCartney fulfilling$duties under the retention agreement,
the Company will record a pre-tax charge of apprately $1.5 million over the retention period, dsting of expected cash payments of
$0.7 million and a non-cash charge of $0.8 millionthe modification of stock options and restrititock awards. In addition, Mr.
McCartney will receive a performance bonus he wdwslde been entitled to had he been employed bg dinepany through December 31,
2012. The charge recorded in the second quattgedsto the retention agreement was immaterial.

On January 26, 2011, Patrick S. O’Keefe resigneahfhis positions as Chief Executive Officer, Preaidand Director. Pursuant to a
separation agreement, the Company recorded a chiife3 million, consisting of $3.3 million in egpted cash severance and a non-cash
charge of $3.0 million for the modification of skogptions and restricted stock awards.

Shipping and Handling

The Company'’s shipping costs included in sellireneral and administrative expenses were $8.9 miflizd $9.9 million for the second
quarters of 2012 and 2011, respectively, and w&88smillion and $18.7 million for the first six mths of 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Research and Developme

Research and development costs included in setlieigeral and administrative expenses were $5.8m#ind $5.7 million for the second
quarters of 2012 and 2011, respectively, and wg@e7dmillion for both the first six months of 20a8d 2011, respectively.

Taxes, Other than Income Taxes

Taxes assessed by governmental authorities oraakactions are recorded on a net basis and edfuom sales in the Company’s
consolidated statements of operations.
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Income Taxe

Income taxes are accounted for under the assdiadnility method. Deferred tax assets and liakahtiare recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences betwe=firthncial statement carrying amounts of existingets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carwairds. Deferred tax assets and liabilities arasue=d using enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which thteseporary differences are expected to be recowvarsdttled. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax ratesdegnized in income in the period that includesdghactment date.

New Accounting Standart

In December 2011, the Financial Accounting Stansl&uolrd (FASB) issued an amendment to the accaugtiidance for disclosure of
offsetting assets and liabilities and related ayesments. The amendment expands the disclosureeatpiits in that entities will be required
to disclose both gross information and net inforarafbout both instruments and transactions ekdibi offset in the statement of financial
position and instruments and transactions subjeghtagreement similar to a master netting arraegerithe amendment is effective for
fiscal years, and interim periods within those geleginning on or after January 1, 2013, and &ieadipplied retrospectively. The Company
does not expect the adoption of this accountingquacement will have a material impact on its fitiahstatements.

In July 2012, the FASB issued an amendment todfjeirements for indefinite-lived intangible assepairment testing. The Company has
the option to first assess qualitative factorsdtedmine whether the existence of events or cirtamegs leads to a determination that it is
more likely than not that the fair value of an ifidige-lived intangible asset is less than its gamg amount. If, after assessing the totality of
events or circumstances, the Company determingsniore likely than not that the fair value of adéfinite-lived intangible asset is greater
than its carrying amount, then performing the immpaint test is unnecessary. The Company intenddaptahis new standard effective with
its annual impairment testing date of October 80tlie year ending December 31, 2012.

3. Discontinued Operations and Assets Held For Sale

In the first quarter of 2010, the Company recordecstimated reserve of $5.3 million in discontthoperations in connection with its
investigation of potential violations of the FoneiGorrupt Practices Act (FCPA) at Watts Valve (Gjsra) Co., Ltd. (CWV), a former
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the CompanyGhina. On October 13, 2011, the Company enteredairsiettiement for $3.8 million with
the Securities and Exchange Commission to resdlegadions concerning potential violations of tHeFA at CWV. During the quarter end
July 3, 2011, the Company revised the reserve 8 $dlion based on the pending settlement. Sete B@f the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Second Quarter Endec Six Months Ended
July 1, July 3, July 1, July 3,
2012 2011 2012 2011
(in millions)
Reserve releas- FCPA matter (CWV $ — 3 17 $ — 8 1.7
Gain on disposal — TEAM — 0.3 — 0.3
Income (loss) before income taxes — 2.C — 2.C
Income tax expense — 0.3 — 0.3
Income from discontinued operations, net
taxes $ — $ 17 $ — $ 1.7

During the quarter ended July 1, 2012, the CompsBgard of Directors approved the disposal of araion within the Company’s North
America segment. The Company evaluated the fhilrevass cost to sell the net assets and deterntia¢dhe fair value exceeded the
carrying value. The Company recorded the net as$&$0.9 million, representing gross assets of Giillion less liabilities of $3.1 million,
as assets held for sale. The revenues and re$wiferations are not material to the Company. Tompany will not have continuing
involvement after a sale is completed.

4. Financial Instruments and Derivative Instruments

The Company measures certain financial assetsaitities at fair value on a recurring basis, irdihg foreign currency derivatives, defer
compensation plan assets and related liability,mdingent consideration. There were no cash fedges as of July 1, 2012. The fair
values of these certain financial assets and liedsilwere determined using the following inputgaly 1, 2012 and December 31, 2011:
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Fair Value Measurements at July 1, 2012 Using
Quoted Prices in

Active Significant Other Significant
Markets for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(in millions)

Assets
Plan asset for deferred compensation(1) $ 41 % 41 % — $ —
Total assets $ 41 $ 41 $ — 3 —
Liabilities
Plan liability for deferred compensation $ 41 $ 41 $ — $ —
Contingent consideration(3) 6.1 — — 6.1
Total liabilities $ 102 $ 41 $ — $ 6.1

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2011 Usin

Significant Other Significant
Quoted Prices in Active Observable Unobservable
Markets for Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(in millions)

Assets
Plan asset for deferred compensation(1) $ 4C $ 4C $ — $ —
Total assets $ 4C $ 4C $ — $ —
Liabilities
Plan liability for deferred compensation $ 4C $ 4C $ — $ —
Contingent consideration(3) 1.1 — — 1.1
Total liabilities $ 51 $ 4C $ — $ 1.1

(1) Included in other, net on the Company’s consolidétalance sheet.
(2) Included in accrued compensation and benefits elfCitmpany’s consolidated balance sheet.
(3) Included in other noncurrent liabilities and acdexpenses and other liabilities on the Compamyrsolidated balance sheet.

The table below provides a summary of the changésiri value of all financial assets and liabiktimeasured at fair value on a recurring t
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)tfoe period December 31, 2011 to July 1, 2012.

Total realized and
unrealized gains

Balance Purchases. (losses) included in: Balance
December 31 sales, Comprehensive July 1,
2011 settlements, net Earnings income 2012
(in millions)
Contingent consideratic $ 11 % 51 $ 01 $ 0.2 $ 6.1

In 2010, a contingent liability of $1.9 million wascognized as an estimate of the acquisition fd@tealue of the contingent consideration in
the BRAE acquisition. This liability was classifiad Level 3 under the fair value hierarchy as & Wwased on the weighted probability of
achievement of a future performance metric as®fiite of the acquisition, which was not observabthe market. During the year ended
December 31, 2011, the estimate of the fair vafibecontingent consideration was reduced to #iillon based on the revised probability
of achievement of the future performance metriailufe to meet the performance metric would redbegliability to zero, while complete
achievement would increase this liability to thi famaining purchase price of $4.8 million.

In connection with the tekmar Control Systems asitjon in 2012, a contingent liability of $5.1 nidh was recognized as the estimate of the
acquisition date fair value of the contingent cdesation (see Note 12). This liability was clagsifas Level 3 under the fair value hierarchy
as it was based on the probability of achieveméatfature performance metric as of the date ofabguisition, which was not observable in
the market. Failure to meet the performance neetviculd reduce this liability to zero; while com@achievement would increase this
liability to the full remaining purchase price oAD $8.2 million.
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Short-term investment securities as of July 1, 28drisist of a certificate of deposit with a remagimaturity of greater than three months at
the date of purchase, for which the carrying amdsiatreasonable estimate of fair value.

Cash equivalents consist of instruments with remgimaturities of three months or less at the ddpurchase and consist primarily of
certificates of deposit and money market fundswbich the carrying amount is a reasonable estimffair value.

The Company uses financial instruments from timenb@ to enhance its ability to manage risk, ingtgdforeign currency and commodity
pricing exposures, which exist as part of its ongddusiness operations. The use of derivativessegthe Company to counterparty credit
risk for nonperformance and to market risk relatedhanges in currency exchange rates and commuoditys. The Company manages its
exposure to counterparty credit risk through difiesgtion of counterparties. The Company’s coungéeties in derivative transactions are
substantial commercial banks with significant eigrere using such derivative instruments. The impé&atarket risk on the fair value and
cash flows of the Company'’s derivative instrumeastsionitored and the Company restricts the useedbdtive financial instruments to
hedging activities. The Company does not enterdotaracts for trading purposes nor does the Cognpater into any contracts for
speculative purposes. The use of derivative instntmis approved by senior management under wgtiéfelines.

The Company has exposure to a number of foreigreray rates, including the Canadian Dollar, theoztive Chinese Yuan and the British
Pound. To manage this risk, the Company generalg a layering methodology whereby at the end phaarter, the Company has
generally entered into forward exchange contratiislwhedge approximately 50% of the projected ausrpany purchase transactions for
next twelve months. The Company primarily uses shigtegy for the purchases between Canada andl $hél'he average volume of contre
can vary but generally is approximately $2 millior515 million in open contracts at the end of given quarter. At July 1, 2012, the
Company had contracts for notional amounts aggirggapproximately $2.0 million. The Company accauior the forward exchange
contracts as an economic hedge. Realized and ime@gains and losses on the contracts are recdjimizother (income) expense in the
consolidated statement of operations. These cdatdacnot subject the Company to significant marisét from exchange movement because
they offset gains and losses on the related foreigrency denominated transactions. The fair vafitbese contracts as of July 1, 2012 was
not material.

Fair Value

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalehtst-term investments, trade receivables and {pagiables approximate fair value
because of the short maturity of these financistriiments.

The fair values of the Company’s 5.47% senior ndtes2013, 5.85% senior notes due 2016 and 5.05¥rsetes due 2020, are based on a
discounted cash flow model using like industrialnp@anies, the Company’s credit metrics, the Comasige, as well as current market
interest rates quoted in active markets and assifked within Level 2 of the valuation hierarchyhe fair value of the Company’s variable
rate debt approximates its carrying value. Theysgramount and the estimated fair market valuthefCompany’s longerm debt, includiny
the current portion, are as follows:

July 1, December 31,
2012 2011
(in millions)
Carrying amoun $ 385.1 $ 399.¢
Estimated fair valu $ 4227 % 440.k

5. Restructuring and Other Charges

The Company’s Board of Directors approves all magstructuring programs that involve the discordimee of product lines or the shutdown
of facilities. From time to time, the Company talelditional restructuring actions, including inuaiary terminations that are not part of a
major program. The Company accounts for theseséoghe period that the individual employees afied or the liability is incurred.
These costs are included in restructuring and atharges in the Company’s consolidated statemédmpgearations. In April 2011, the Board
approved an integration program in association thiehacquisition of Danfoss Socla S.A.S. (SoclE)e program was designed to integrate
certain operations and management structures d Saih a total estimated pre-tax cost of $6.4 imillwith costs being incurred through
2012. As of July 1, 2012, the Company revisedbitecast to $4.4 million due to lower than expecederance costs.

The Company also periodically initiates other awsiavhich are not part of a major program. In 2@hé&,Company initiated restructuring
activities with respect to the Company’s operafenglities in Europe, which included the closureadfacility. The Europe restructuring
activities are expected to include pre-tax cospproximately $2.6 million, including costs foveeance and shut-down costs. The total net
after-tax charge is $1.8 million with costs beingurred through 2012. In 2012, the Company comemnestructuring activities in North
America to relocate certain production activitiedijch include the closure of two manufacturingsibecurring through 2013. Total expected
costs are $2.8 million, including severance anddsdwn costs. The net after tax charge of $1.8onilill be incurred through the middle of
2013.
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A summary of the pre-tax cost by restructuring paog is as follows:

Second Quarter Ended Six Months Ended
July 1, July 3, July 1, July 3,
2012 2011 2012 2011
(in millions)
Restructuring costt

2010 Actiong $ 01 $ 18 $ 01 $ 2.7
2011 Actions 0.1 3.4 0.€ 3.6
Other Actions 0.¢ — 1.€ —
Total restructuring charges 11 5.2 2.3 6.3
Other charges related to impairments 0.1 0.3 0.€ 0.3
Total restructuring and other charges $ 1.2 $ 5 $ 2S¢ $ 6.6

The Company recorded net pre-tax restructuringcdher charges in its business segments as follows:

Second Quarter Endec Six Months Ended
July 1, July 3, July 1, July 3,
2012 2011 2012 2011
(in millions)

North America $ 04 $ — 0.8 $ 0.1
EMEA 0.8 5.3 2.1 6.3
Asia. — 0.2 — 0.2
Total $ 12 $ 5 & 2¢ % 6.€

2011 Actions

The following table summarizes the total expecteciirred and remaining pre-tax severance costth&®?011 Socla integration program:

Total Expected Incurred through Remaining Costs at
Reportable Segmen Costs July 1, 2012 July 1, 2012
(in millions)
EMEA $ 42 $ 345 0.7
Asia 0.2 0.2 —
Total $ 44 $ 37 $ 0.7

The Company expects to spend the remaining costtsebgnd of 2012.

Details of the Company’s 2011 Socla integratiorress for severance for the six months ended JuQ12 are as follows:

Six Months Ended

July 1, 2012

(in millions)
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 0.4
Net pre-tax restructuring charge 0.5
Utilization and foreign currency impa (0.3
Balance at April 1, 201 $ 0.€
Net pre-tax restructuring charges 0.1
Utilization and foreign currency impact (0.6)
Balance at July 1, 201: $ 0.1

The Company expects to exhaust the remaining redsrehe end of 2012.
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The following table summarizes expected, incurnedi i@@maining severance costs for 2011 Socla integractions:

Incurred through

July 1, 2012

(in millions)
Expected cost $ 4.4
Costs incurre— 2011 (3.2
Costs incurre— quarter ended April 1, 201 (0.5
Costs incurred— quarter ended July 1, 201z 0.7
Remaining costs at July 1, 201 $ 0.7

6. Earnings per Share

The following tables set forth the reconciliatiointloe calculation of earnings per share:

For the Second Quarter Ended July 1, 201 For the Second Quarter Ended July 3, 201
Income Shares Per Share Income Shares Per Share
(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount (Numerator) (Denominator) Amount
(amounts in millions, except per share amounts
Basic EPS
Net income;
Continuing operation $ 18.F 36 $ 051 $ 12.¢ 376 $ 0.34
Discontinued operations — — 1.7 0.0t
Net income $ 18.5 $ 0.51 $ 14.€ $ 0.3¢
Effect of dilutive securitie
Common stock equivalents 0.1 0.2
Diluted EPS
Net income!
Continuing operation $ 18.t $ 051 % 12.¢ $ 0.34
Discontinued operations — — 1.7 0.0t
Net income $ 18.5 366 $ 051 $ 14.€ 37¢ $ 0.3¢

Options to purchase 0.4 million and 0.3 milliongsaof Class A Common Stock were outstanding dufirgsecond quarters of 2012 and
2011, respectively, but were not included in thepatation of diluted EPS because to do so wouldredilutive.

For the Six Months Ended July 1, 201. For the Six Months Ended July 3, 201:
Income Shares Per Share Income Shares Per Share
(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount (Numerator) (Denominator) Amount
(amounts in millions, except per share amounts
Basic EPS
Net income:
Continuing operation $ 34.2 36.71 $ 09: $ 24.C 376 % 0.64
Discontinued operations — — 1.7 0.0t
Net income $ 34.2 $ 0.9 $ 25.7 $ 0.6¢
Effect of dilutive securitie
Common stock equivalents 0.1 0.1
Diluted EPS
Net income:
Continuing operation $ 34.2 $ 09: $ 24.C $ 0.64
Discontinued operations — — 1.7 0.0t
Net income $ 34.2 36c $ 0.9 $ 25.7 377 $ 0.6¢

Options to purchase 0.4 million and 0.3 millionEsaof Class A Common Stock were outstanding duhiedirst six months of 2012 and
2011, respectively, but were not included in thepatation of diluted EPS because to do so wouldrtiedilutive.

On May 16, 2012, the Board of Directors authoriaesiock repurchase program of up to two milliorrsbaf the Company’s Class A
Common Stock. During the quarter ended July 122@1e Company repurchased approximately 1.9 milleares of Class A common stock
at a cost of approximately $63.2 million. The &toepurchase program was completed in July 2012.
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7. Segment Information

The Company operates in three geographic segnidoith America, EMEA, and Asia. Each of these segm&nmanaged separately and has
separate financial results that are reviewed byCthimpany’s chief operating decision-maker. All mtampany sales transactions have been
eliminated. Sales by region are based upon locafidime entity recording the sale. The accountialicpes for each segment are the same as
those described in the summary of significant anting policies.

The following is a summary of the Company’s sigrafit accounts and balances by segment, reconoitbé tonsolidated totals:

Second Quarter Ended Six Months Ended
July 1, July 3, July 1, July 3,
2012 2011 2012 2011
(in millions)
Net Sales
North America $ 2216 $ 212.C $ 431.¢ $ 414.1
EMEA 142.¢ 157.¢ 292.( 281.¢
Asia 6.5 5.8 11.5 9.7
Consolidated net sales $ 3711 $ 375.7 $ 735.: $ 705.¢
Operating income (los!
North America $ 26.7 $ 26.2 % 46.¢ $ 53.C
EMEA 12.C 6.8 24.¢ 16.€
Asia 2.1 0.8 3.5 1.7
Subtotal reportable segments 40.¢ 34.1 75.2 71.:
Corporate (*) (7.7) (7.5 (14.6) (21.¢)
Consolidated operating income 33.7 26.€ 60.¢ 49.t
Interest incom: 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.5
Interest expens (6.2 (6.7) (12.9) (12.6
Other — (0.€) 0.¢ (0.9
Income from continuing operations before incon
taxes 27.t $ 19.5 $ 49.6 $ 36.7
Capital Expenditure
North America $ 18 $ 1¢ % 44 $ 5.3
EMEA 2.4 3.2 4.€ 6.3
Asia 0.5 0.3 0.€ 0.4
Consolidated capital expenditures $ 47 $ 54 $ 9€ $ 12.C
Depreciation and Amortizatic
North America $ 52 % 52 $ 100 $ 9.€
EMEA 6.8 8.4 14.1 14.¢
Asia 0.5 0.5 1.C 1.C
Consolidated depreciation and amortization $ 125 % 141 $ 251 $ 25.4
Identifiable Assets (at end of peric
North America $ 790.C $ 844.¢
EMEA 750. 948.¢
Asia 90.¢ 85.1
Discontinued operations — 1.€
Consolidated identifiable assets $ 1,631.0 $ 1,880.¢
Property, plant and equipment, net (at end of pi¢
North America $ 737 % 83.¢
EMEA 123.¢ 153.1
Asia 14.F 15.2
Consolidated property, plant and equipment, net $ 2121 % 252.2

* Corporate expenses are primarily for administratimmpensation expense, internal controls costéegsmnal fees, including legal and
audit expenses, shareholder services and benafihadration costs. These costs are not allocateld geographic segments as they are
viewed as corporate functions that support alvas.

The above operating segments are presented orisacbasistent with the presentation included inGloenpan’s December 31, 201



consolidated financial statements included in itm#al Report on Form 10-K.
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The following includes U.S. net sales and U.S. prip plant and equipment of the Company’s Northefica segment:

Second Quarter Ended Six Months Ended
July 1, July 3, July 1, July 3,
2012 2011 2012 2011
(in millions)
U.S. net sale $ 199.7 $ 192t $ 389.7 $ 375.2
U.S. property, plant and equipment (at end of @B $ 71€ $ 78.€

The following includes intersegment sales for N@ktherica, EMEA and Asia:

Second Quarter Endec Six Months Ended
July 1, July 3, July 1, July 3,
2012 2011 2012 2011
(in millions)
Intersegment Sale

North America $ 12 $ 08 $ 2€ $ 1.7
EMEA 2.0 2.3 4.€ 4.2
Asia 35.c 37.2 66.4 67.C
Intersegment sales $ 38 $ 40 $ 73€ $ 73.¢

The North America segment includes $14.7 milliomgsets held for sale at July 1, 2012. The Nortledeca segment and the Asia segment
include $3.8 million and $6.2 million, respectively assets held for sale at July 3, 2011.

The Company sells its products into various endketararound the world and groups net sales to gidrtes into four product categories.
Because many of the Company’s sales are througifibdi®rs and third-party manufacturers’ represévgs, a portion of the product
categorization is based on management’s undersigquadifinal product use and, as such, allocatiangetbeen made to align sales into a
product category. Net sales to third partiesfierfour product categories are as follows:

Second Quarter Ended Six Months Ended
July 1, July 3, July 1, July 3,
2012 2011 2012 2011
(in millions)
Net Sales

Residential & commercial flow contr: $ 211.: % 199.2 % 412  $ 365.¢€
HVAC & gas 106.¢ 122.1 216.¢ 235.¢
Drains & water r-use 35.C 36.¢ 68.7 67.7
Water quality 18.C 17.¢ 37.t 36.7
Consolidated net sales $ 3711 $ 3755 $ 7352 $  705.¢

8. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) stssif the following:

Foreign Accumulated Other
Currency Pension Comprehensive
Translation Adjustment Income (Loss)
(in millions)

Balance December 31, 201 $ 5 $ (24.¢) $ (29.0
Change in period 16.5 0.2 16.7
Balance April 1, 2012 $ 221 % 249 $ 2.3
Change in period (39.9) 0.1 (39.6)
Balance July 1, 201: $ 17.6) $ (24.9) $ (41.9
Balance December 31, 20 $ 24¢ % (25.2) $ (0.3
Change in period 34.C 0.8 34.¢
Balance April 3, 2011 $ 58.¢ $ 249 $ 34.t
Change in period 14.7 0.€ 15.5
Balance July 3, 2011 $ 73.€ $ (23.6) $ 50.C
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Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)eénctimsolidated balance sheets as of July 1, 20d.2wp 3, 2011 consists primarily of
cumulative translation adjustments and pensioneélaet actuarial loss and prior service costs.

9. Debt

The Company'’s credit agreement (the Credit Agregmprovides for a multi-currency $300.0 millioivé-year, senior unsecured revolving
credit facility which may be increased by an additil $150.0 million under certain circumstances sufgject to the terms of the Credit
Agreement. The Credit Agreement has a sublimitpotfou$75.0 million in letters of credit.

Borrowings outstanding under the Credit Agreemeairlinterest at a fluctuating rate per annum eu@) in the case of Eurocurrency rate
loans, the British Bankers Association LIBOR raligspan applicable percentage, ranging from 1.70236%, determined by reference to
Company'’s consolidated leverage ratio plus, inciige of certain lenders, a mandatory cost cal@ilataccordance with the terms of the
Credit Agreement, or (i) in the case of base ladms and swing line loans, the highest of (a)f¢eral funds rate plus 0.5%, (b) the rate of
interest in effect for such day as announced bykBdmmerica, N.A. as its “prime rate,” and (c) tBetish Bankers Association LIBOR rate
plus 1.0%, plus an applicable percentage, rangorg D.70% to 1.30%, determined by reference tahimpanys consolidated leverage ra
In addition to paying interest under the Credit égment, the Company is also required to pay cefigamin connection with the credit
facility, including, but not limited to, a facilitiee and letter of credit fees. Under the Credite®gnent, the Company is required to satisfy and
maintain specified financial ratios and other fioiahcondition tests. The Credit Agreement matamresune 18, 2015. The Company may
repay loans outstanding under the Credit Agreerinent time to time without premium or penalty, otlilean customary breakage costs, if
any, and subject to the terms of the Credit Agredn?es of July 1, 2012, the Company was in comméwith all covenants related to the
Credit Agreement and had $265.4 million of unused available credit under the Credit Agreement$84l6 million of stand-by letters of
credit outstanding on the Credit Agreement. The gamy did not have any borrowings outstanding utlieCredit Agreement at July 1,
2012.

The Company is a party to several note agreemsritgther detailed in Note 10 of Notes to Consd#daFinancial Statements of the Annual
Report on Form 16 for the year ended December 31, 2011. Theseawtements require the Company to maintain a fkedge coverag
ratio of consolidated EBITDA plus consolidated rerpense during the period to consolidated fixemrgds. Consolidated fixed charges are
the sum of consolidated interest expense for thiegand consolidated rent expense. As of JuB012, the Company was in compliance
with all covenants regarding these note agreemértis. note agreements include $75.0 million of oosed senior notes maturing on May
2013 which have been included in the current pontiblong-term debt in the Company’s balance sheet.

10. Contingencies and Environmental Remediation

As disclosed in Part I, Item 1, “Product Liabilignvironmental and Other Litigation Matters” of t@empany’s Annual Report on Form kKO-
for the year ended December 31, 2011, the Compasyparty to certain litigation. There have beemaderial developments with respect to
the Company’s contingencies and environmental réatied proceedings during the quarter ended JuB012 except as noted below.

On March 8, 2012, Watts Water Technologies, InattéVRegulator Co., and Watts Plumbing Technolodies were named as defendants in
a putative nationwide class action complaint fitedhe U.S. District Court for the Northern Distrf California seeking to recover damages
and other relief based on the alleged failure iétconnectors. The complaint seeks among otkerd, damages in an unspecified amount,
replacement costs, injunctive relief, and attorh&es and costs.

The Company is unable to estimate a range of redbppossible loss for the above matter in whicimadges have not been specified bece
() the proceedings are in the early stages;H@ya is uncertainty as to the likelihood of a clsimg certified or the ultimate size of the class;
(iii) there is uncertainty as to pending motions) there are significant factual issues to be Ine=tty and (v) there are novel legal issues
presented. However, based on information currdattyvn to the Company, it does not believe thaséhgroceedings will have a material
effect on its financial position, results of opé&vas, cash flows or liquidity.

11. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company sponsors funded and unfunded non-batitrg defined benefit pension plans that togetioeer substantially all of its U.S.
employees. Benefits are based primarily on yeasepnfice and employees’ compensation. The fundaligyof the Company for these plans
is to contribute an annual amount that does natek¢he maximum amount that can be deducted ferdéthcome tax purposes.

On October 31, 2011, the CompasiBoard of Directors voted to cease accruals oftiaddl benefits effective December 31, 2011 uriuteth
the Company'’s Pension Plan and Supplemental EmgdoRRetirement Plan. In 2011, the Company recoadadtailment charge of
approximately $1.5 million to write-off previouslynrecognized prior service costs and reduced thieged benefit obligation by $12.5
million.
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The components of net periodic benefit cost arfelémvs:

Second Quarter Ended Six Months Ended
July 1, July 3, July 1, July 3,
2012 2011 2012 2011
(in millions)

Service co—Dbenefits earned and administrative ct $ 02 % 13 $ 04 % 2.€
Interest costs on benefits obligati 1.4 1t 2.8 3.C
Expected return on asst 2.7 (1.8 3.5 (3.6)
Prior service costs and net actuarial loss amdidiza 0.1 0.8 0.3 1.€
Net periodic benefit co: $ — $ 1€ § — $ 3.€

The information related to the Company’s pensiardfucash flow is as follows:

Six Months Ended
July 1, July 3,
2012 2011
(in millions)

Employer contribution: $ 04 % 5.1

The Company expects to contribute approximatel@ $dillion to its pension plans for the remainde261.2.
12. Acquisitions

On April 29, 2011, the Company completed the adtioisof Socla and the related water controls beisénof certain other entities controlled
by Danfoss A/S, in a share and asset purchaseattims. The final consideration paid was EUR 116ilion. The purchase price was
financed with cash on hand and euro-based borr@ainger our Credit Agreement. The purchase prazequal to approximately $172.4
million based on the exchange rate of Euro to ddflars as of April 29, 2011.

The Company accounted for the transaction as adssicombination. The Company completed a purghras allocation that resulted in
the recognition of $79.7 million in goodwill and %3 million in intangible assets. Intangible ass®insist primarily of customer relationst
with estimated lives of 10 years and trade nam#s @iher 20-year lives or indefinite lives. Theogiwill is attributable to the workforce of
Socla and the synergies that are expected toasiagesult of the acquisition. The goodwill i$ expected to be deductible for tax purposes.
The following table summarizes the final valuetod assets and liabilities acquired (in millions):

Cash $ 7.4
Accounts receivabl 28.2
Inventory 24.¢
Fixed asset 46.¢
Other asset 6.5
Intangible asset 39.¢
Goodwill 79.7
Accounts payabl (8.2
Accrued expenses and ott (19.9
Deferred tax liability (22.9)
Debt (10.9)
Purchase price $ 172.¢

The consolidated statement of operations for tkhers# quarter and six months ended July 1, 201Rdted the results of Socla. The results
include $34.4 million and $69.2 million of revenws® $3.2 million and $5.7 million of operating amee, respectively, which includes
restructuring charges of $0.1 million and $0.6 iwril| respectively.

Supplemental pro-forma information (unaudited)

Had the Company completed the acquisition of Sattae beginning of 2011, net sales, net incomm ftontinuing operations and earnings
per share would have been as follows:
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Second Quarter Ended Six Months Ended
Amounts in millions (except per share information) July 3, 2011 July 3, 2011
Net sales $ 389.71 $ 753.(
Net income from continuing operatio $ 157 $ 29.C
Net income per shar
Basic EPS<— continuing operation $ 04z $ 0.77
Diluted EPS— continuing operation $ 041 $ 0.77

Net income from continuing operations for the sekquarter and six months ended July 3, 2011 wasstad] to include $0.2 million and $(
million, respectively, of net interest expense tedato the financing and $0.2 million and $0.9 ioil| respectively, of net amortization
expense resulting from the estimated allocatiopus€hase price to amortizable tangible and intdagibsets. Net income for the second
quarter and six months ended July 3, 2011 wasealpssted to exclude $2.4 million and $3.5 millioespectively, of net acquisition-related
charges and third-party costs.

On January 31, 2012, the Company completed thasitign of tekmar Control Systems (tekmar) in arshurchase transaction. A designer
and manufacturer of control systems used in heatigtilation, and air conditioning applicationkmear is expected to enhance the
Company’s hydronic systems product offerings inth®. and Canada. The initial purchase price waisl CAD $18.0 million, with an earn-
out based on future earnings levels being achieiid. total purchase price will not exceed CAD 228illion. Sales for tekmar in 2011
approximated CAD $11.0 million. The results ofrtede are included in the Company’s North Americanselgt since the acquisition date and
are not material to the Company’s consolidatednfiie statements. See Note 2 for additional infation on purchase price allocations.

13. Subsequent Event
Dividend Declarec

On July 31, 2012, the Company declared a quartivigend of eleven cents ($0.11) per share on eat$tanding share of Class A Common
Stock and Class B Common Stock payable on Augus2@12 to stockholders of record at the close airss on August 20, 2012.
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Item 2. Managements Discussion And Analysis Of Financial Condition Ad Results Of Operations

Overview

The following discussion and analysis are provitteihcrease understanding of, and should be readrijunction with, the accompanying
unaudited consolidated financial statements anelsnoln this quarterly report on Form 10-Q, refesmto “the Company,” “Watts,” “we,”
“us” or “our” refers to Watts Water Technologies¢l and its consolidated subsidiaries.

We operate on a 52-week fiscal year ending on Dbee®l. Any quarterly or six-month data contaiiethis Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q generally reflects the results of operationsafd3-week or 26-week period, respectively.

We are a leading supplier of products for use énvtiater quality, water safety, water flow controtlavater conservation markets in both
North America and EMEA (Europe, Middle East andiéd), with a growing presence in Asia. For over $8@rs, we have designed ¢
manufactured products that promote comfort andsafepeople and the quality and conservation dlewased in commercial and residential
applications. We earn revenue and income almostusixely from the sale of our products. Our priradiproduct lines are:

* Residential & commercial flow control products —eludes products typically sold into plumbing and Wwater applications
such as backflow preventers, water pressure regalgemperature and pressure relief valves, agmntbstatic mixing valves.

HVAC & gas products — includes hydronic and elechéating systems for under-floor radiant applaai hydronic pump
groups for boiler manufacturers and alternativegyneontrol packages, and flexible stainless sterhectors for natural and
liquid propane gas in commercial food service agidential applications. HVAC is an acronym foatieg, ventilation and air
conditioning.

» Drains & water re-use products — includes draina@elucts and engineered rain water harvestingiesakifor commercial,
industrial, marine and residential applications.

e Water quality products — includes point-of-use antht-of-entry water filtration, conditioning and scale peation systems fc
both commercial and residential applications.

Our business is reported in three geographic segminrth America, EMEA and Asia. We distribute @uoducts through three primary
distribution channels: wholesale, do-it-yourselfYDand original equipment manufacturers (OEMsjetast rates, the unemployment rate
and credit availability have an indirect effecttbe demand for our products due to the effect satds have on the number of new residential
and commercial construction starts and remodelingepts. All of these activities have an impactoom levels of sales and earnings. An
additional factor that has had an effect on ougssahd operating income is fluctuation in foreigrmrency exchange rates, as approximately
46% of our sales and certain portions of our c@ssets and liabilities are denominated in curemnether than the U.S. dollar.

During the second quarter of 2012, sales decreb&&dmillion primarily from the depreciation of tkerro against the dollar of $16.2 million
offset by acquired sales of $13.1 million resultfrmm our acquisitions of Socla and tekmar. Orgasailes decreased by 0.4% compared to
last year's comparable period, with increased salesir North American wholesale and DIY marketsgeoffset by reduced sales in
EMEA’s OEM and wholesale markets. Organic salehénsecond quarter of 2012 increased over thendegaarter of 2011 in North
America by $7.6 million, or 3.6%, increased in ABia$0.2 million, or 3.4%, and decreased in EMEAS8y3 million, or 5.9%. Organic sal
growth excludes the impacts of acquisitions, diests and foreign exchange from year-over-yeargamsons. We believe this provides
investors with a more complete understanding okudgthg sales trends by providing sales growth @omsistent basis. Organic net sales
increases in North America were driven mainly biuwnee increases in certain markets, offset by lovadumes in EMEA. Gross margins
increased in the second quarter of 2012 as compar2@il1 by 0.8 percentage points, driven printypay reduced acquisition-related costs.
We continued with the conversion of our U.S. maotfang facilities to lead-free production, whichused inefficiencies from pigroductior
costs and product outsourcing. However, the efféttiis conversion on gross margins decreasedgltine second quarter of 2012 as
compared to the first quarter of 2012. Our traosito lead-free products is in response to ther@dReduction of Lead in Drinking Water
Act, which requires the weighted average lead contetiteofvetted surfaces of pipes, plumbing fittingd pltumbing fixtures used in potable
water applications to be reduced to no greater th25% by January 2014. Commodity costs duringjtheter were fairly stable. Operating
income of $33.7 million increased by 26.7% in theand quarter of 2012 as compared to the secortequé 2011, driven by lower
restructuring costs, lower acquisition-related s@std contributions from acquisitions. Foreignhergye movements primarily related to a
weakening of the euro against the U.S. dollar neglgtaffected operating earnings by $1.6 milliamen compared to the same period of
2011.
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We believe that the factors relating to our futgrewth include the demand for clean water arouedatbrld, regulatory requirements relating
to the quality and conservation of water, continaatbrcement of plumbing and building codes, odlitgtio grow organically in select
attractive market segments and geographic regibasuccessful completion of selective acquisititmagh in our core markets as well as in
new complementary markets, and a healthy economvicanment, that fosters residential and commemaistruction. Our acquisition
strategy focuses on businesses that manufactuieriae: brand name products that address our thefreater quality, water conservation,
water safety, water flow control, HVAC and relatsnplementary markets. We target businesses thigtravide us with one or more of the
following: an entry into new markets, an increasshelf space with existing customers, a new oravgxd technology or an expansion of the
breadth of our water quality, water conservatioatex safety and water flow control and HVAC producir the residential and commercial
construction markets.

We have completed 36 acquisitions since divestingralustrial and oil and gas business in 1999.J&wary 31, 2012, we completed the
acquisition of tekmar Control Systems (tekmar) Bhare purchase transaction. A designer and metaoéa of control systems used in
heating, ventilation, and air conditioning applioas, tekmar is expected to enhance our hydrorstesys product offerings in the U.S. and
Canada. The initial purchase price paid was CAB.Gnillion, with an earn-out based on the achiesetnof certain future earnings levels.
The total purchase price will not exceed CAD $28iltion. Sales for tekmar in 2011 were approxinhateAD $11.0 million. On April 29,
2011, we completed the acquisition of Danfoss S8chaS. (Socla) and the related water controlsrmss of certain other entities controlled
by Danfoss A/S, in a share and asset purchaseattéms. The net purchase price of EUR 116.3 amllivas financed with cash on hand and
euro-based borrowings under our Credit Agreem&ht net purchase price was approximately $172.Homibased on the exchange rate of
Euro to U.S. dollars as of April 29, 2011. Sodaimanufacturer of water protection valves ang ftontrol solutions for the water market
and the heating, ventilation and air conditioningrket. Its major product lines include backfloveyenters, check valves and pressure
reducing valves. Socla is based in France, amritducts are distributed worldwide for commeraiesidential, municipal and industrial u
Socla’s annual revenue for 2010 was approximat&80® million. Socla expands our residential anshwercial plumbing and flow control
product lines in EMEA and also adds to our HYACdrct line.

Products representing a majority of our sales algest to regulatory standards and code enforcemérith typically require that these
products meet stringent performance criteria. Tiogretvith our commissioned manufacturers’ represiems, we have consistently advocated
for the development and enforcement of such plumbodes. We are focused on maintaining stringealityicontrol and testing procedures
at each of our manufacturing facilities in ordentanufacture products in compliance with code nesménts and take advantage of the
resulting demand for compliant products. We belignat the product development, product testing ls#ipaand investment in plant and
equipment needed to manufacture products in cong@iavith code requirements, represent a competitivantage for us.

Historically, we have faced a risk relating to ability to respond to raw material cost fluctuagolVe manage this risk by monitoring related
market prices, working with our suppliers to aclki¢ire maximum level of stability in their costs arthted pricing, seeking alternative
supply sources when necessary, purchasing forwarminitments for raw materials, when available, impdating cost reduction programs
and passing increases in costs to our customéhe iform of price increases.

Another risk we face in all areas of our businessoimpetition. We consider brand preference, eeging specifications, code requirements,
price, technological expertise, delivery times,lfjuand breadth of product offerings to be thenary competitive factors. We believe that
product development, product testing capabilitgdoith of product offerings and investment in pkmd equipment needed to manufacture
products in compliance with code requirements rggamea competitive advantage for us. We are comadniti maintaining our capital
equipment at a level consistent with current tetbgies, and thus we expect to spend an aggregagpobximately $36.0 million during
2012 for purchases of capital equipment.

Recent Events

Stock Repurchase Program

We completed the previously announced stock reseeiprogram during the first week of July 2012. pechased two million shares of «
Class A Common stock for an aggregate cost of $8tlbn. During the quarter ended July 1, 2012, rgpurchased approximately 1.9
million shares for approximately $63.2 million,at average purchase price of approximately $32:88mare.

Dividend Declarec

On July 31, 2012, we declared a quarterly divideheleven cents ($0.11) per share on each outstgrstiare of Class A Common Stock and
Class B Common Stock payable on August 31, 20E2ackholders of record at the close of busines&uyust 20, 2012.
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Results of Operations
Second Quarter Ended July 1, 2012 Compared to Seab@Quarter Ended July 3, 2011

Net Sales Our business is reported in three geographic satgnNorth America, EMEA and Asia. Our net safesach of these segments
for each of the second quarters of 2012 and 20%#& agfollows:

Second Quarter Ended Second Quarter Ended % Change to
July 1, 2012 July 3, 2011 Consolidated
Net Sales % Sales Net Sales % Sales Change Net Sales
(dollars in millions)
North America $ 221.¢ 50.¢% $ 212.( 56.2% $ 9.8 2.€%
EMEA 142.¢ 38.5 157.¢ 42.C (15.0) (4.0)
Asia 6.5 1.7 5.9 1.€ 0.€ 0.2
Total $ 371.1 100.(% $ 375.1 100.(% $ (4.6) (1.2)%

The change in net sales was attributable to tHeviolg:

Change Change
As a % of Consolidated Net Sales As a % of Segment Net Sales
North North North
America  EMEA Asia Total America EMEA Asia Total America EMEA Asia
(dollars in millions)
Organic $ 7€ $ (99 8% 02 $ (1.5) 2.0% (2.5% 0.1% (0.9% 3.€% (5.9% 3.4%
Foreign exchang (0.9 (15.5) 0.2 (16.2) (0.2 4.1 — (4.9 (0.4 (9.8 34
Acquired 3.1 9.8 0.2 13.1 0.8 2.6 0.1 85 14 6.2 34
Total $ 9.6 $ (150 $ 06 $ (4.6 2.6% (4.00% 0.2% (1.2% 4.€% (9.5% 10.2%

Organic net sales in the North America wholesalekatancreased by $3.9 million, or 2.3%, in thes®t quarter of 2012, compared to the
second quarter of 2011, mainly from increased salessidential and commercial products of $2.6ioml or 2.1%, and HVAC and gas
products of $0.7 million, or 3.4%. Organic salesreased in the North American DIY market by $3ilfion, or 8.9%, in the second quarter
of 2012 compared to the second quarter of 201desadential and commercial products increased b§ 88llion, or 11.0%.

Organic net sales in the EMEA wholesale marketeheszd by $1.6 million, or 2.1%, in the second quart 2012 as compared to the same
period in 2011. Sales gains from our drains protines and our geographic expansion into the Midethst were offset by lower sales in
Italy. Organic net sales into the OEM market wawe/n approximately $6.4 million, or 8.6%, as congghio the second quarter of 2011.
OEM demand was down due to destocking as a rektileaveak heating season.

The net decrease in sales due to foreign exchaagerimarily due to the depreciation of the euraiagt the U.S. dollar. We cannot predict
whether the euro will appreciate or depreciateragdhe U.S. dollar in future periods or whethaufa foreign exchange rate fluctuations will
have a positive or negative impact on our net sales

Acquired net sales growth in North America was ttuthe inclusion of Socla and tekmar, and acquirettsales growth in EMEA and Asia
was due to the inclusion of Socla.

Gross Profit.Gross profit and gross profit as a percent of aktss(gross margin) for the second quarters of 2022011 were as follows:

Second Quarter Endec

July 1, July 3,
2012 2011
(dollars in millions)
Gross profit $ 131.¢ $ 130.:
Gross margir 35.5% 34.1%

Gross margin increased 0.8 percentage points isgbend quarter of 2012 compared to the secondegur2011 mainly as a result of
reduced acquisition-related charges of $3.6 milliurred in 2011 for the Socla acquisition. No#tinerica’s gross margin declined
compared to second quarter of 2011 due to highercoenmodity costs, and pre-production and outsagrcbsts caused by certain plants
transitioning production to lead-free products. EM@ross margin increased as a result of the 20Tla%equisition costs mentioned
previously.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expense3elling, General and Administrative, or SG&A, erpes for the second quarter of 2012
decreased $1.3 million, or 1.3%, compared to ticerse quarter of 2011. The decrease in SG&A expewss attributable to the following:

(in millions) % Change
Organic $ (2.0 (2.0%
Foreign exchang (3.9 (3.9
Acquired 4.5 4.6
Total $ 1.3 (1.9%

The organic decrease in SG&A expenses was primaduigyto lower personnel-related costs and loweredigtion and amortization of $2.6
million and $1.7 million, respectively. The lowgersonnel costs were driven primarily by selectegidecount reductions and reduced net
retirement costs resulting from our decision te@fethe defined benefit pension plan in the U.fecéffe December 31, 2011. Depreciation
and amortization charges were reduced primarilyrigrairment charges taken in 2011 for long-ternetssf a European subsidiary. These
cost decreases were offset by approximately $2l®mof increased costs including higher insuranests of $0.4 million primarily related
health insurance, increased IT costs of $0.3 miltiedated primarily to an ERP implementation in & and hardware costs in North
America, and sales related costs of $0.5 milliawedr by advertising expenses and other professgeraice costs. The decrease in SG&A
expenses from foreign exchange was primarily dubaalepreciation of the euro against the U.Sadatl 2012. Acquired SG&A costs were
related to the Socla and tekmar acquisitions. [T®&&A expenses, as a percentage of sales, wet&w®. both the second quarter of 2012
and 2011, respectively.

Restructuring and Other Charge In the second quarter of 2012, we recorded a ehafr§1.2 million primarily for involuntary termitians
and other costs incurred as part of our EuropeNorth America restructuring plans, as comparedstd $nillion of restructuring charges for

the second quarter of 2011. For a more detaiésdription of our current restructuring plans, Sege 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Operating Income. Operating income (loss) by geographic segmentimisecond quarters of 2012 and 2011 were asMsillo

% Change to

Second Quarter Ended Consolidated
July 1, July 3, Operating
2012 2011 Change Income
(dollars in millions)
North America $ 26.7 $ 26.2 % 0.4 1.5%
EMEA 12.C 6.S 51 19.2
Asia 2.1 0.6 1.2 4.5
Corporate (7.0 (7.5 04 1.t
Total $ 337 $ 26.€ $ 7.1 26.7%

The increase (decrease) in operating income (issgjributable to the following:

Change Change
As a % of Consolidated Operating Income As a % of Segment Operating Income
North North North
America EMEA Asia Corp. Total America EMEA Asia Corp. Total America EMEA Asia Corp.
(dollars in millions)
Organic $ 12 $ 12 $09 $ 04 $ 37 4.5% 4.5% 3.4% 1.5% 13.%% 4.5% 17.4% 100.(% (5.9%
Foreign exchang (0.2) (1.5 0.1 — (1.€) (0.8) (5.€) 0.4 — (6.0) (0.7) (21.9) 11.1 —
Acquired 0.7 0.8 — — 0.7 0.9 3.C — — 2.€ 0.9 11.€ — —
Restructuring, impairmet
charges and othe (0.5 4.6 0.2 — 4.3 (1.9 17.2 0.7 — 16.2 (1.9 66.€ 22.2 —

Total $ 04 $ 51 %12 % 04 $ 71 1.5% 19.2% 4.5% 1.5% 26.7% 1.5% 73.%% 133.9% (5.9%

The increase in consolidated organic operatingrireaas due primarily to a net reduction in restrting and other charges, a decrease in
SG&A expense and an increase in gross marginseémons previously discussed. The increase irhMarterica’s organic operating income
was driven by organic sales growth and lower SG&Ats. The EMEA organic operating income increaas @ue to lower acquisition-
related costs in the second quarter of 2012 as amdpo the same period last year and a decre&8&#\ costs, partially offset by lower
profits from a reduction in organic sales. Theuas operating income was related to the Soclat@kmhar acquisitions. Restructuring costs
decreased primarily due to fewer charges relatedgivucturing programs in Europe.

Interest Expens¢ Interest expense decreased $0.6 million, or 9f6#4he second quarter of 2012 as compared teghend quarter of 2011,
primarily from a reduction in outstanding debt uge@011 for the acquisition of Socla.
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Other, net. Other, net decreased $0.6 million for the seapmatter of 2012 as compared to the second qudrg&ld, primarily due to a
reduction in foreign currency transaction losses.

Income Taxes Our effective rate for continuing operations @éased to 33.4% in the second quarter of 2012, 8818% for the second
quarter of 2011. The decrease was mainly dueetarilx of worldwide earnings, with more earningsngejenerated in 2012 in Europe and
China, than in 2011.

Net Income Net income for the second quarter of 2012 wasSpd8llion, or $0.51 per common share, compare$ilt®.9 million, or $0.34
per common share, for the second quarter of 20&4ules for the second quarter of 2012 include tar-&éx charge of $0.9 million, or $0.02
per common share, for restructuring and other @sarglated primarily to involuntary terminationsiaither costs compared to an after-tax
restructuring and other charge of $3.7 million$6r10 per common share, for the second quartedbf.ZThe depreciation of the euro and
Canadian dollar against the U.S. dollar resultea megative impact on our operations of $0.03 parrnon share for the second quarter of
2012 when compared to the same period in 2011thé&wyrthe effects of the share repurchase proguadsrtaken during the second quarte
2012 and the third quarter of 2011 positively aféelcearnings per share by $0.02 when comparinghdeguarter results for 2012 and 2011.

Six Months Ended July 1, 2012 Compared to Six MonthEnded July 3, 2011

Net Sales Our business is reported in three geographic satgnNorth America, EMEA and Asia. Our net safesach of these segments
for each of the first six months of 2012 and 20Etewas follows:

Six Months Ended Six Months Ended % Change to
July 1, 2012 July 3, 2011 Consolidated
Net Sales % Sales Net Sales % Sales Change Net Sales
(dollars in millions)
North America $ 431.¢ 58.7% $ 414.1 58.7% $ 17.7 2.5%
EMEA 292.( 39.7 281.¢ 39.€ 10.2 14
Asia 11.5 1.€ 9.7 1.4 1.8 0.3
Total $ 735.C 100.(% $ 705.¢ 100.(% $ 29.7 4.2%

The change in net sales was attributable to tHeviolg:

Change Change
As a % of Consolidated Net Sales As a % of Segment Net Sales
North North North
America EMEA Asia Total America EMEA Asia Total America EMEA Asia
(dollars in millions)
Organic $ 112 $ (10.9) $ 0.7 $ 1.€ 1.€% (2.5% 0.1% 0.2% 2.7% (3.7)% 7.2%
Foreign exchang (1.2 (20.5) 0.4 (21.9) (0.2 (2.9 0.1 (3.0 (0.2 (7.9) 4.2
Acquired 7.€ 41.1 0.7 49.4 1.1 5.8 0.1 7.0 1.8 14.€ 7.2
Total $ 177 $ 102 $ 1.8 $ 29.7 2.5% 1.4% 0.2% 4.2% 4.2% 3.6€% 18.€%

Organic net sales in the North America wholesalekatancreased by $5.5 million, or 1.7%, in theffisix months of 2012, compared to the
first six months of 2011, with increased salespgraximately $7.1 million in residential and comial products being offset partially by a
reduction in HYAC and gas products sales of appnaxély $3.1 million. Organic sales increased altorth America DIY market by $5.8
million, or 6.9%, in the first six months of 2018mpared to the first six months of 2011, as regidkand commercial products and water
quality products sales increased by $5.2 milliod 6.7 million, respectively.

EMEA organic net sales in the wholesale marketetesad by approximately $1.5 million, or 1.1%, ie finst six months of 2012, as
compared to the same period in 2011. Sales gaiRsaince and from geographic expansion into thedMi&ast were offset by softer sales in
Italy. Organic net sales into the OEM market wdwern approximately $7.0 million, or 5.3%, as conguhto the first six months of 2011.
Sales gains in hydronic under-floor heating packagel in our drains product lines were offset lmuoed sales of certain pump controls and
pre-insulated piping products due in part to weatbkated issues and due to lower sales activitgeineral, in Italy.

The net decrease in sales due to foreign exchaageumarily due to the depreciation of the euraiagt the U.S. dollar. We cannot predict
whether the euro will appreciate or depreciateragdhe U.S. dollar in future periods or whethaufa foreign exchange rate fluctuations will
have a positive or negative impact on our net sales

Acquired net sales growth in North America was ttuthe inclusion of Socla and tekmar, and acquireidsales growth in EMEA and Asia
was due to the inclusion of Socla.

Gross Profit.Gross profit and gross profit as a percent of aktss(gross margin) for the first six months of 2@hd 2011 were as follows:

Six Months Ended
July 1, July 3,
2012 2011
(dollars in millions)

Gross profi $ 261.¢ $ 251.2
Gross margir 35.6% 35.€%
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Gross margins were consistent in the first six memtf 2012 as compared to the first six months0dfl2 North America’s gross margin
declined due to cost increases for non-commoditghmses as well as pre-production and outsoura@sts caused by certain plants
transitioning production to lead-free products.afftlecline was offset by an increase in gross marigi EMEA related to acquisition related
charges incurred in 2011 for the Socla acquisitiat did not recur in 2012.

Selling, General and Administrative Expense&elling, General and Administrative, or SG&A, erges for the first six months of 2012
increased $2.7 million, or 1.4%, compared to th& 8ix months of 2011. The increase in SG&A exagsrwas attributable to the following:

(in millions) % Change
Organic $ (6.9 (3.5%
Foreign exchang (5.0 (2.6)
Acquired 14.¢ 72
Total $ 2.7 1.4%

The organic decrease in SG&A expenses was primauigyto; (i) separation costs for our former Clarécutive Officer incurred in 2011 of
$6.3 million; (ii) the impact of selected headcoteductions; (iii) reduced net retirement costsiltésy from our decision to freeze the defii
benefit pension plan in the U.S. effective Decen83er2011; and (iv) reduced depreciation and ametitin in 2012 of $2.0 million related
primarily to impairment charges taken in 2011 fertain long-lived assets of a European subsidifget by approximately $2.6 million in
higher insurance costs primarily related to prodiadility and health insurance. The decrease i&8@xpenses from foreign exchange was
primarily due to the depreciation of the euro agathe U.S. dollar in 2012. Acquired SG&A costs eveglated to the Socla and tekmar
acquisitions. Total SG&A expenses, as a percendbgales, were 26.9% in the first six months a2@ompared to 27.7% in the first six
months of 2011.

Restructuring and Other Charge In the first six months of 2012, we recorded arghaf $2.9 million primarily for involuntary termations
and other costs incurred as part of our EuropedrNamth American restructuring plans, as compaoe®bt6 million of restructuring charges
for the first six months of 2011. For a more dethdescription of our current restructuring plasse Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Operating Income. Operating income (loss) by geographic segmentifirst six months of 2012 and 2011 were a®¥ed:

% Change to

Six Months Ended Consolidated
July 1, July 3, Operating
2012 2011 Change Income
(dollars in millions)
North America $ 46.¢ 3 53.C $ (6.2 (12.9%
EMEA 24.¢ 16.€ 8.2 16.€
Asia 35 1.7 1.8 3.€
Corporate (14.€) (21.9) 7.2 14.5
Total $ 60.6 $ 495 $ 11.1 22.2%

The increase (decrease) in operating income (lssgjributable to the following:

Change Change
As a % of Consolidated Operating Income As a % of Segment Operating Incom¢
North North North
America EMEA Asia Corp. Total America EMEA Asia Corp. Total America EMEA Asia Corp.
(dollars in millions)

Organic $ (BIY$ 233% 1 $ 72 % 57 (10.79)% 4.6% 3.0% 14.5% 114 (10.0% 13.¢% 88.2% (33.0%
Foreign exchang 0.2 (1.9 0.1 — (2.0) (0.4) (3.8 0.2 — (4.0) (0.4 (11.5) 5.9 —
Acquired 0.2 3.5 — — 3.7 04 7.1 — — 7.5 04 211 — —
Restructuring, impairmer

charges and otht (0.9 4.3 0.2 — 3.7 (1.6) 8.7 0.4 — 7.5 (1.5 25.€ 11.€ —
Total $ ®1)$ 82 3% 18 $ 72 $ 111 (12.9)% 16.6€% 3.6% 14.5% 22.%% (11.9% 49.4% 105.9% (33.0%

The increase in consolidated organic operatingmmem the first six months of 2012 was due in paud net reduction in SG&A expenses at
the Corporate level related to our former CEQ’sasafion costs incurred in 2011 as previously diseds The reduction in North America
organic operating income was driven by lower gragsgin and increased product liability costs. Toeease in EMEA organic operating
income was due to an improvement in gross margmasily from lower acquisition related costs in tlirst six months of 2012 as compared
to the same period last year. The acquired opgraticome related to Socla and tekmar. Additionakgtructuring costs increased primarily
due to charges related to restructuring prograngsinope.
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Interest Expense Interest expense decreased $0.3 million, or 2fd#4he first six months of 2012 as compared ®fttst six months of
2011, primarily due to the interest on additionairbwings in 2011 under our revolving line of ctedcurred in connection with the
acquisition of Socla.

Other, net. Other, net increased $1.6 million for the firgt months of 2012 as compared to the first six rhemtf 2011, primarily due to a
reduction in foreign currency transaction lossa$ aeustoms settlement in Asia that was less thaneserve amount.

Income Taxes Our effective tax rate for continuing operatialesreased to 31.1% for the six months ended JW@12 from 34.6% for the
six months July 3, 2011. The higher rate in 20&% Vargely due to non-deductible acquisition costl.1 million associated with the Socla
acquisition in Europe. Further, 2012 taxes wedeiced by approximately $0.8 million for reserveseales, primarily related to the comple
of a European subsidiary’s tax audit.

Net Income Net income for the first six months of 2012 w&4 2 million, or $0.93 per common share, compaoe®?t.0 million, or $0.64
per common share, for the first six months of 2@dsults for the first six months of 2012 includheadtertax charge of $1.9 million, or $0.!
per common share, for restructuring and other @sarglated primarily to involuntary terminationsiaither costs compared to an after-tax
restructuring and other charge of $4.4 million$0rl2 per common share, for the first six month2aif1. The depreciation of the euro and
Canadian dollar against the U.S. dollar resultea megative impact on our operations of $0.04 parmon share for the first six months of
2012 compared to the comparable period in 2011.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We generated $23.9 million of cash from operaticiivaies in the first six months of 2012 as conmgzhto $20.7 million in the first six mont
of 2011. This increase is primarily due to betteemting results. Cash from operating activitgetypically lower in the first half due to
normal seasonality in the business, and we antiipash flow improvement through the remainderGif2

We used $26.1 million of net cash for investingwatis for the first six months of 2012, includi®d.7.5 million for the acquisition of tekmar
and $9.6 million of cash for capital equipment.r fre remainder of fiscal year 2012, we expecht@st approximately $26 million in capital
equipment as part of our ongoing commitment to owprour operating capabilities.

We used $79.8 million of net cash for financing\aties for the first six months of 2012, primarilgr our stock repurchase program,
repayment of our line of credit and dividend paytsenffset by proceeds from additional debt issearend from employee share
transactions.

Our credit agreement (the Credit Agreement) pravide a multi-currency $300.0 million, five-yeagrsor unsecured revolving credit facility
which may be increased by an additional $150.0enilunder certain circumstances and subject toettmes of the Credit Agreement. The
Credit Agreement has a sublimit of up to $75.0ionillin letters of credit.

Borrowings outstanding under the Credit Agreemeairlinterest at a fluctuating rate per annum eu@) in the case of Eurocurrency rate
loans, the British Bankers Association LIBOR raligspan applicable percentage, ranging from 1.70236%, determined by reference to
our consolidated leverage ratio plus, in the cdseidain lenders, a mandatory cost calculatedgoriance with the terms of the Credit
Agreement, or (ii) in the case of base rate loantssaving line loans, the highest of (a) the fed&ralls rate plus 0.5%, (b) the rate of interest
in effect for such day as announced by Bank of ApagiN.A. as its “prime rate,” and (c) the BritiBankers Association LIBOR rate plus
1.0%, plus an applicable percentage, ranging frof@% to 1.30%, determined by reference to our dateted leverage ratio. In addition to
paying interest under the Credit Agreement, weatge required to pay certain fees in connectioh #ie credit facility, including, but not
limited to, a facility fee and letter of credit fedJnder the Credit Agreement, we are requirectisfy and maintain specified financial ratios
and other financial condition tests. The Credit@gnent matures on June 18, 2015. We may repay tastanding under the Credit
Agreement from time to time without premium or pkiynaother than customary breakage costs, if angl,subject to the terms of the Credit
Agreement. As of July 1, 2012, we had $34.6 millad stand-by letters of credit outstanding unéier€redit Agreement. As of July 1, 2012,
we were in compliance with all covenants relatethtoCredit Agreement and had $265.4 million ofsadiand available credit under the
Credit Agreement.

Working capital (defined as current assets lesgeatitiabilities) as of July 1, 2012 was $400.5limi compared to $521.9 million as of
December 31, 2011. Cash and cash equivalentsadect¢éo $167.8 million as of July 1, 2012, comp&oeh250.6 million as of December :
2011. The ratio of current assets to current litdsdl was 2.1 to 1 as of July 1, 2012 and 2.8 &3 df December 31, 2011. The decrease was
driven primarily by our use of $63.2 million casir bur stock repurchase program and the increaserient portion of longerm debt relate
the inclusion of $75 million for our 5.47% seni@tes due in May 2013.

As of July 1, 2012, we held $167.8 million in castd cash equivalents. Our ability to fund operetifyom this balance could be limited by
the liquidity in the market as well as possible itaplications of moving proceeds across jurisditsio Of this amount, approximately $75.8
million of cash and cash equivalents were helddogi§n subsidiaries. Our U.S. operations curregéligerate sufficient cash flows to meet
our domestic obligations. We also have the abitithorrow funds at reasonable interest rateszatihe committed funds under our Credit
Agreement or recall intercompany loans. Howeviamounts held by foreign subsidiaries were needddnd operations in the United
States, we could be required to accrue and pay taxepatriate these funds. Such charges mayded federal tax of up to 35.0% on
dividends received in the U.S., potential stat®ime taxes and an additional withholding
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tax payable to foreign jurisdictions of up to 10.0%towever, our intent is to permanently reinvesdiatributed earnings of foreign
subsidiaries and we do not have any current planspatriate them to fund operations in the Un8éates.

We anticipate paying the $75.0 million of unsecuset7 % senior notes maturing on May 15, 2013 thincampilable funds or by successfully
refinancing the debt.

Nor-GAAP Financial Measures

We believe free cash flow to be an appropriate lupental measure of our operating performance lseciprovides investors with a
measure of our ability to generate cash, to redoy, gpay dividends, repurchase stock and to fugdisitions. Other companies may define
free cash flow differently. Free cash flow does mepiresent cash generated from operating activitiascordance with GAAP. Therefore it
should not be considered an alternative to net peskided by operations as an indication of oufqrerance. Free cash flow should also not
be considered an alternative to net cash provigezplrations as defined by GAAP. The cash conversite of free cash flow to net income
is also a measure of our performance in cash flemegation.

A reconciliation of net cash provided by operataugivities to free cash flow and calculation of eash conversion rate is provided below:

Six Months Ended

July 1, July 3,
2012 2011
(in millions)
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 23¢ % 20.7
Less: additions to property, plant, and equipn (9.6) (12.0
Plus: proceeds from the sale of property, plard, equipment 1.0 0.€
Free cash flow $ 152 % 9.3
Net income from continuing operatio $ 342 $ 24.C
Cash conversion rate of free cash flow to net ireérom
continuing operation 44.1% 38.8%

Our free cash flow improved in the first six monti2012 when compared to the first six months@E2 primarily due to higher operating
profits and reduced capital expenditures.

Our net debt to capitalization ratio (a non-GAARaficial measure) for the first six months of 20E5\20.0%, comparable to 13.9% at
December 31, 2011. The increase in net debt tdategaition ratio is due primarily to cash outlayated to the stock repurchase program and
the tekmar acquisition. Management believes thelelet to capitalization ratio is an appropriateptemental measure because it helps
investors understand our ability to meet our finagmeeds and as a basis to evaluate our finastcigiture. Our computation may not be
comparable to other companies that may define tietidebt to capitalization ratios differently.

A reconciliation of long-term debt (including cuntgportion) to net debt and our net debt to cagasibn ratio is provided below:

July 1, December 31,
2012 2011
(in millions)
Current portion of lon-term deb $ 77.C 3 2.C
Plus: lon¢-term debt, net of current portic 308.1 397.¢
Less: cash and cash equivalents (167.9) (250.6)
Net debt $ 217 $ 148.¢
A reconciliation of capitalization is provided belo
July 1, December 31
2012 2011
(in millions)
Net debt $ 2172 $ 148.¢
Total stockholders’ equity 869.1 919.¢
Capitalization $ 1,086.. $ 1,068.¢
Net debt to capitalization rat 20.C% 13.£%

We maintain letters of credit that guarantee oufgpmance or payment to third parties in accordamite specified terms and conditions.
Amounts outstanding were approximately $34.8 nrillés of July 1, 2012 and $34.9 million at Decen@ier2011. Our letters of credit are
primarily associated with insurance coverage amd, lesser extent, foreign purchases and genergtlye within
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one year of issuance. These instruments may axétgre without being drawn down; therefore theymbt necessarily represent future cash
flow obligations.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Except for operating lease commitments, we haveffibalance sheet arrangements that have or asemahly likely to have a current or
future effect on our financial condition, changedinancial condition, revenues or expenses, regfloperations, liquidity, capital
expenditures or capital resources that are materialvestors.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies and Key Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial stegets in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires managéemno make judgments, assumpti
and estimates that affect the amounts reporteditidat accounting estimate is an assumption abaylly uncertain matters and could have a
material effect on the consolidated financial staats if another, also reasonable, amount were osea change in the estimate is reasor
likely from period to period. We base our assumpion historical experience and on other estinthtsve believe are reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results could differ sigrafitly from these estimates. There were no chaimgascounting policies or significant
changes in accounting estimates during the firstrginths of 2012.

We periodically discuss the development, selediod disclosure of the estimates with our Audit Catrea. Management believes the
following critical accounting policies reflect itsore significant estimates and assumptions.

Revenue recognitic

We recognize revenue when all of the followingesia are met: (1) we have entered into a bindirrgemgent, (2) the product has shipped and
title has passed, (3) the sales price to the cuest@fixed or is determinable and (4) collectaypils reasonably assured. We recognize rev
based upon a determination that all criteria feergie recognition have been met, which, basede@mtjority of our shipping terms, is
considered to have occurred upon shipment of tiighed product. Some shipping terms require thelgtm be received by the customer
before title passes. In those instances, revermeasoa recognized until the customer has receilledypods. We record estimated reductior
revenue for customer returns and allowances, dasbuhts and for customer rebate programs. Pradshor returns and allowances and cash
discounts are made at the time of sale, derivad fistorical trends and form a portion of the adlmee for doubtful accounts. Customer
rebate programs, which are primarily annual volumeentive plans, allow customers to earn creditftaining agreed upon purchase targets
from us. We record estimated reductions to revemagle at the time of sale, for customer rebaterprog based on estimated purchase
targets.

Allowance for doubtful accoun

The allowance for doubtful accounts is establisioegpresent our best estimate of the net reakzadlue of the outstanding accounts
receivable. The development of our allowance fartdful accounts varies by region but in gener&lased on a review of past due amounts,
historical write-off experience, as well as agirentls affecting specific accounts and general dp@i factors affecting all accounts. In
addition, factors are developed in certain regigilizing historical trends of sales and returnd ailowances and cash discount activities to
derive a reserve for returns and allowances an digsounts.

We uniformly consider current economic trends amainges in customer payment terms when evaluatsngdbquacy of the allowance for
doubtful accounts. We also aggressively monitorctieelitworthiness of our largest customers, anégdarally review customer credit limits
to reduce risk. If circumstances relating to spedtistomers change or unanticipated changes atthie general business environment, our
estimates of the recoverability of receivables ddié further adjusted.

Inventory valuatior

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or metarkth costs determined primarily on a first-irsfiout basis. We utilize both specific prod
identification and historical product demand ashibsis for determining our excess or obsolete itorgrreserve. We identify all inventories
that exceed a range of one to four years in s@lds.is determined by comparing the current invgnb@lance against unit sales for the
trailing twelve months. New products added to irteenwithin the past twelve months are excludedrfithis analysis. A portion of our
products contain recoverable materials, theretoeeekcess and obsolete reserve is established aey oecoverable amounts. Changes in
market conditions, lower-than-expected customeratehor changes in technology or features couldtrgsadditional obsolete inventory
that is not saleable and could require additiomatntory reserve provisions.

In certain countries, additional inventory reseraes maintained for potential shrinkage experienodatle manufacturing process. The rest
is established based on the prior year’s inventmsyes adjusted for any change in the gross insgbtdance.

Gooduwill and other intangibles
We have made numerous acquisitions over the ydaidwnincluded the recognition of a significant ambaf goodwill. Goodwill is tested for

impairment annually or more frequently if an eventircumstance indicates that an impairment loag have been incurred. Application of
the goodwill impairment test requires judgment]uding the identification of reporting units, assigent of
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assets and liabilities to reporting units, and heeation of the fair value of each reporting uffite estimate the fair value of our reporting
units using an income approach based on the preakm of estimated future cash flows. We belidwg approach yields the most appropr
evidence of fair value as our reporting units areeasily compared to other corporations involvedimilar businesses. We have determined
we have eight reporting units including Residerdiadl Commercial, Dormont, Drains & Water re-use ABRWater Quality, EMEA,

Blucher, and Asia. Our Water Quality reportingtudaes not have goodwill.

Intangible assets such as purchased technologyeaerally recorded in connection with a businesiiaition. Values assigned to intangible
assets are determined by an independent valuatinrbised on our estimates and judgments regaedipgctations of the success and life
cycle of products and technology acquired.

Revised accounting guidance issued in September 2dws us to review goodwill for impairment utilig either qualitative or quantitative
analyses. We have the option to first assesstgtiad factors to determine whether the existericavents or circumstances leads to a
determination that it is more likely than not ttta fair value of a reporting unit is less tharcisrying amount. If, after assessing the totality
of events and circumstances, we determine it irtikely than not that the fair value of a repagtimit is greater than its carrying amount,
then performing the two-step (quantitative) impanntest is unnecessary.

We first identify those reporting units that weibeé could pass a qualitative assessment to deterwliether further impairment testing is
necessary. For each reporting unit identified,qualitative analysis includes:

1) A review of the most recent fair value calculattoridentify the extent of the cushion between Yailue and carrying
amount, to determine if a substantial cushion egist

2) Areview of events and circumstances that haveroedisince the most recent fair value calculateddtermine if those
events or circumstances would have affected owiquie fair value assessment. Items identified r@vitwed include
macroeconomic conditions, industry and market ceangost factor changes, events that affect trertig unit, financial
performance against expectations and the repautiitts performance relative to peers.

We then compile this information and make our assesit of whether it is more likely than not that fair value of the reporting unit is less
than its carrying amount. If we determine it is mmre likely than not, then no further quantitatanalysis is required.

The second analysis for goodwill impairment invaleequantitative two-step process. The first sfepe impairment test requires a
comparison of the fair value of each of our repaytiinits to the respective carrying value. If taerging value of a reporting unit is less than
its fair value, no indication of impairment existsd a second step is not performed. If the carrgingunt of a reporting unit is higher than its
fair value, there is an indication that impairmeraty exist and a second step must be performetieladcond step, the impairment is
computed by comparing the implied fair value of tegorting units goodwill with the carrying amount of the goodwiflthe carrying amoui

of the reporting unit's goodwill is greater tharm implied fair value of its goodwill, an impairmdoss must be recognized for the excess and
charged to operations.

Inherent in our development of the present valuliinire cash flow projections are assumptions atidhates derived from a review of our
operating results, business plans, expected grateis, cost of capital and tax rates. We also makiain assumptions about future economic
conditions and other market data. We develop ssumptions based on our historical results inclydeles growth, operating profits,
working capital levels and tax rates.

We believe that the discounted cash flow modetisigive to the selected discount rate. We usd-fharty valuation specialists to help
develop appropriate discount rates for each repprinit. We use standard valuation practicesriweaat a weighted average cost of capital
based on the market and guideline public compari&g higher the discount rate, the lower the disted cash flows. While we believe that
our estimates of future cash flows are reasondifferent assumptions could significantly affect @aluations and result in impairments in
the future.

As of October 30, 2011, the annual impairment asialglate, the fair value of the EMEA reporting witeeded the carrying value by
approximately 9%. Operating results for the EMEfarting unit have been hindered by the downtuithéneconomic environment in
Europe and continued to fall below expectationsnduthe six months ended July 1, 2012, triggerfregdecision to update the impairment
analysis. As a result of the updated fair valieasment, it was determined that the fair valub@EMEA reporting unit continues to exceed
its carrying value, a result of a decrease in distoate and a reduction of net debt offset by logt®rt-term projections. We also performed
an analysis on the long-lived assets in the EMBjoréng unit as a result of the triggering everd anncluded that these assets were not
impaired.

Should the EMEA reporting units operating resudislohe further because the European marketpla@gidettes beyond our current
expectations or should interest rates increasédfisigmtly, then the reporting unit’'s goodwill mag lat risk for impairment in the future. The
EMEA reporting unit's goodwill balance as of July2D12 was $202.7 million.
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Product liability and worker compensation costs

Because of retention requirements associated witlinsurance policies, we are generally se$fdred for potential product liability claims ¢
for workers’ compensation costs associated withkplaice accidents. We are subject to a variety tdigal liabilities in connection with
product liability cases and we maintain excess peotability and other insurance coverage, whighlvelieve to be generally in accordance
with industry practices. For product liability essin the U.S., management establishes its prdidbdity accrual by utilizing third-party
actuarial valuations that incorporate historicahtt factors and our specific claims experiencevddrfrom loss reports provided by thiparty
administrators. In other countries, we maintasuiance coverage with relatively high deductiblgnpents, as product liability claims tend to
be smaller than those experienced in the U.S. @¥sim the nature of claims or the actual settléraprounts could affect the adequacy of
this estimate and require changes to the provisesse experienced in the first six months of 2@h2n we incurred incremental costs of
$2.1 million. Because the liability is an estimdtes ultimate liability may be more or less thapaeed.

Workers’compensation liabilities in the U.S. are recogniftectlaims incurred (including claims incurred Imgt reported) and for changes
the status of individual case reserves. At the timeorkers’compensation claim is filed, a liability is estiredtto settle the claim. The liabili
for workers’ compensation claims is determined dasemanagement’s estimates of the nature andigewtthe claims and based on
analysis provided by third-party administrators dgdsarious state statutes and reserve requireméfgdave developed our own trend
factors based on our specific claims experienagatdinted based on risk-free interest rates. Weantpird-party actuarial valuations to help
us estimate our workers’ compensation accruabthier countries where workers’ compensation cagt@pplicable, we maintain insurance
coverage with limited deductible payments. Becadhediability is an estimate, the ultimate liahjilinay be more or less than reported and is
subject to changes in discount rates.

We maintain excess liability insurance with outsigurance carriers to minimize our risks relateddtastrophic claims in excess of all self-
insured positions. Any material change in the afaetioned factors could have an adverse impactioogerating results.

Legal contingencie

We are a defendant in numerous legal matters iimguitiose involving environmental law and produability as discussed in more detail in
Part I, Item 1, “Business - Product Liability, Emmmental and Other Litigation Matters,” of our Arah Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2011. As required by GAAP, eterchine whether an estimated loss from a lossragericy should be accrued by
assessing whether a loss is deemed probable atastheamount can be reasonably estimated, netyd@plicable insurance proceeds.
Estimates of potential outcomes of these continigsrare developed in consultation with outside selinVhile this assessment is based t
all available information, litigation is inherentlyncertain and the actual liability to fully reselthis litigation cannot be predicted with any
assurance of accuracy. In the event of an unfal®@@iicome in one or more legal matters, the uliéniability may be in excess of amounts
currently accrued, if any, and may be materialupaperating results or cash flows for a particalaarterly or annual period. However, be
on information currently known to us, managemetieles that the ultimate outcome of all legal cogéncies, as they are resolved over t
is not likely to have a material effect on our fic&l position, results of operations, cash flowsiquidity.

Pension benefit

We account for our pension plans in accordance GAAP, which involves recording a liability or aséased on the projected benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. Agsions are made regarding the valuation of bewoéligations and the performance of plan
assets. The primary assumptions are as follows:

» Weighted average discount ratéhis rate is used to estimate the current valdatofe benefits. This rate is adjusted based onem@nt ir
long-term interest rates.

» Expected long-term rate of return on assets—thésisaused to estimate future growth in investmantsinvestment earnings. The
expected return is based upon a combination obiiiisti market performance and anticipated fututerre for a portfolio reflecting the mix
equity, debt and other investments indicative aoffgan assets.

We determine these assumptions based on consnltaitio outside actuaries and investment advisong. variance in these assumptions
could have a significant impact on future recogdipension costs, assets and liabilities.

On October 31, 2011, our Board of Directors voteddase accruals of additional benefits effectieeddnber 31, 2011 under both the Per
Plan and Supplemental Employees Retirement Pléfective November 1, 2011, we began amortizinguhamortized gains and losses over
the remaining life expectancy of the participantteéad of our former policy of average remaininyise period.

Income taxe:

We estimate and use our expected annual effectom@rie tax rates to accrue income taxes. Effetdiveates are determined based on
budgeted earnings before taxes, including our ésgnhate of permanent items that will affect thfe&fve rate for the year. Management
periodically reviews these rates with outside tdxisors and changes are made if material variainoasexpectations are identified.
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We recognize deferred taxes for the expected futonsequences of events that have been reflectbd tonsolidated financial statements.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determbeskd on differences between the book values artthtes of particular assets and liabilities,
using tax rates in effect for the years in which dlifferences are expected to reverse. A valuatiomvance is provided to offset any net
deferred tax assets if, based upon the availatiteree, it is more likely than not that some oroélthe deferred tax assets will not be
realized. We consider estimated future taxablerime and ongoing prudent tax planning strategiesgessing the need for a valuation
allowance. We account for tax benefits when thm it question meets the more-likely-than-not (gge#tan 50% likelihood of being
sustained upon examination by the taxing authgijitiereshold.

New Accounting Standart

In December 2011, the FASB issued an amendmehetadcounting guidance for disclosure of offsettingets and liabilities and related
arrangements. The amendment expands the disclesyugements in that entities will be required isctbse both gross information and net
information about both instruments and transactediggble for offset in the statement of finangmsition and instruments and transactions
subject to an agreement similar to a master nettirangement. The amendment is effective for figeaks, and interim periods within those
years, beginning on or after January 1, 2013, Aatl ke applied retrospectively. We do not expbetadoption of this accountii
pronouncement will have a material impact on ooafficial statements.

In July 2012, the FASB issued an amendment todfjeirements for indefinite-lived intangible assapairment testing. We have the option
to first assess qualitative factors to determinetivér the existence of events or circumstances leaa determination that it is more likely
than not that the fair value of an indefinite-livietngible asset is less than its carrying amdérafter assessing the totality of events or
circumstances, we determine it is more likely thahthat the fair value of an indefinite-lived ingable asset is greater than its carrying
amount, then performing the impairment test is geasary. We intend to adopt this new standardteféeewith our annual impairment testi
date of October 30, for the year ending Decembge312.

Iltem 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures hout Market Risk

We use derivative financial instruments primardyréduce exposure to adverse fluctuations in foreigchange rates, interest rates and costs
of certain raw materials used in the manufactupragcess. We do not enter into derivative finanicistruments for trading purposes. As a
matter of policy, all derivative positions are usededuce risk by hedging underlying economic expe. The derivatives we use are
instruments with liquid markets.

Our consolidated earnings, which are reported itddrStates dollars, are subject to translatidksrdue to changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. This risk is concentrated primarithe exchange rate between the U.S. dollar a@etro; the U.S. dollar and the Canadian
dollar; and the U.S. dollar and the Chinese yuan.

Our foreign subsidiaries transact most businesfding certain intercompany transactions, in fgneturrencies. Such transactions are
principally purchases or sales of materials anddarmminated in European currencies or the U.Eamadian dollar. We use foreign curre
forward exchange contracts to manage the riskeltt intercompany purchases that occur duringdliese of a year and certain open
foreign currency denominated commitments to seltipcts to third parties. Realized and unrealiz@dgyand losses on the contracts we
recognized in other (income) expense are not nzédteri

We have historically had a low exposure on the obsur debt to changes in interest rates. Infoimmadbout our long-term debt, including
principal amounts and related interest rates, appeadlotes 4 and 9 of this report and in Note filates to Consolidated Financial
Statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K ferybar ended December 31, 2011.

We purchase significant amounts of bronze ingasérod, cast iron, steel and plastic, which dheed in manufacturing our many product
lines. Our operating results can be adversely tdteby changes in commodity prices if we are untblgass on related price increases to our
customers. We manage this risk by monitoring rdlabarket prices, working with our suppliers to @efei the maximum level of stability in
their costs and related pricing, seeking altereasivpply sources when necessary, purchasing forvaandgnitments for raw materials, when
available, implementing cost reduction program$ye@ngineering, and passing increases in cosis oar customers in the form of price
increases.

ltem 4. Controls and Procedures

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) under the Securlieshange Act of 1934, as amended, or Exchangea&atf the end of the period covered
by this report, we carried out an evaluation untlersupervision and with the participation of oamagement, including our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer (our principaecutive officer and principal financial officeespectively), of the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures. In designimevaluating our disclosure controls and procesjuwe recognize that any controls and
procedures, no matter how well designed and opbragen provide only reasonable assurance of actyeiie desired control objectives, and
our management necessarily applies its judgmeenatuating and implementing possible controls amdgdures. The effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures is also nedbshianited by the staff and other resources ava#gao us and the geographic diversity of
operations. Based upon that evaluation, our Chietktive Officer and Chief Financial Officer condéd that, as of the end of the period
covered by this report, our disclosure controls and
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procedures were effective, in that they providesoeable assurance that information required tadmoded by us in the reports we file or
submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, procgssanmarized and reported within the time persmicified in the Securities and
Exchange Commissiosirules and forms and are designed to ensurerttoaitriation required to be disclosed by us in thpores that we file ¢
submit under the Exchange Act are accumulated amareinicated to our management, including our Chiefcutive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timelisions regarding required disclosure.

There was no change in our internal control oveairfcial reporting that occurred during the quagteted July 1, 2012, that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, our internal control over financial reportinign. connection with these rules, we will
continue to review and document our disclosurerotsind procedures, including our internal contngdr financial reporting, and may from
time to time make changes aimed at enhancing dffieictiveness and to ensure that our systems ewgtheour business.

Part Il. OTHER INFORMATION

ltem|. Legal Proceedings

As disclosed in Part I, Item 1, “Product Liabiliggnvironmental and Other Litigation Matters” of cdmnual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2011, we are party toicdittgation. There have been no material devaiepts with respect to our contingenc
and environmental remediation proceedings duriedfitst six months ended July 1, 2012.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

This report may include statements that are nabtiéal facts and are considered forward-lookinthwi the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements reflect our curégws about future results of operations andothe
forward-looking information. In some cases you whntify these statements by forward-looking wosdsh as “anticipate,” “believe,”
“could,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “sbuld” and “would” or similar words. You should naly on forward-looking statements
because our actual results may differ materiatiynfthose indicated by these forward-looking statgmas a result of a number of important
factors. These factors include, but are not lichite the following: the current economic and finil condition, which can affect levels of
housing starts and remodeling, affecting the markédtere our products are sold, manufactured, oketed; cost increases and technical
challenges in connection with our conversion tatéae compliant products; shortages in and pricihgaw materials and supplies; loss of
market share through competition; introduction aipeting products by other companies; pressuraioagpfrom competitors, suppliers,
and/or customers; changes in variable interess i@ieour borrowings; identification and disclosafenaterial weaknesses in our internal
control over financial reporting; failure to expaoar markets through acquisitions; failure or detageveloping new products; lack of
acceptance of new products; failure to manufagtooelucts that meet required performance and safatydards; foreign exchange rate
fluctuations; cyclicality of industries, such asiplbing and heating wholesalers and home improvenegaiters, in which we market certain
of our products; environmental compliance costedpct liability costs; the results and timing of eestructuring plans; changes in the status
of current litigation, and other risks and uncettigis discussed in Part |, Item 1A, “Item 1A. Riskctors” and in Note 14 of the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in our AnnualdRegn Form 10-K for the year ended December 311Z0ed with the Securities
Exchange Commission, and in other reports we ffdenftime to time with the Securities and Exchangen@ission.
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Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities ahUse of Proceeds

We satisfy the minimum withholding tax obligationedupon the vesting of shares of restricted stackthe conversion of restricted stock
units into shares of Class A Common Stock by autmaléy withholding from the shares being issuetuianber of shares with an aggregate
fair market value on the date of such vesting mveesion that would satisfy the withholding amodué.

The following table includes information with regpéo shares of our Class A Common Stock withhelsatisfy withholding tax obligations
during the three-month period ended July 1, 2012.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

(c) Total
Number of
Shares (or
Units) (d) Maximum Number (or
(a) Total (b) Purchased as Approximate Dollar Value)
Number of Average Part of Publicly of Shares (or Units) that
Shares (or Price Paid Announced May Yet Be Purchased
Units) per Share Plans or Under the Plans or
Period Purchased (or Unit) Programs Programs
April 2, 2012— April 29, 2012 — — — —
April 30, 2012— May 27, 201z 549: $ 36.3¢ — —
May 28, 2012 — July 1, 2012 — — — —
Total 549: $ 36.3¢ — —

The following table includes information with resp#o the repurchases of our Class A Common Stackg the second quarter ended Ju
2012 under our stock repurchase program.

(c) Total Number (d) Maximum Number (or
(a) Total (b) of Shares (or Units) Approximate Dollar Value)
Number of Average Purchased as Part of Shares (or Units) that
Shares (or Price Paid of Publicly May Yet Be Purchased
Units) per Share Announced Plans Under the Plans or
Period Purchased (1) (or Unit) or Programs (1) Programs (1)
April 2, 2012— April 29, 2012 — — — —
April 30, 2012— May 27, 201z 195,97¢ $ 33.5( 195,97¢ 1,804,02:
May 28, 2012 — July 1, 2012 1,723,79. $ 32.81 1,723,79 80,22
Total 1,919,77. $ 32.8¢ 1,919,77. 80,22

(1) On May 16, 2012, the Board of Directors authoriaexlock repurchase program of up to two milliorreba@f the Company’s
Class A Common Stock in open market purchasesinBtine quarter ended July 1, 2012, we repurchapptbximately 1.9 million
shares of Class A common stock at a cost of apprately $63.2 million. The remaining shares werecpased under the stock
repurchase program in July 2012. The repurchasgrgm has thus been completed.

Iltem 6. Exhibits

The exhibits listed in the Exhibit Index immedigtereceding the exhibits are filed as part of isarterly Report on Form 10-Q and such
Exhibit Index is incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly causeddiport to be signed on its behalf by
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC

Date: August9, 2012 By: /s/ David J. Coghla
David J. Coghlai
Chief Executive Officer (principal executive offig¢

Date: August9, 2012 By: /s/ William C. McCartney
William C. McCartney
Chief Financial Officer (principal financial office

Date: August9, 2012 By: /s/ Timothy M. MacPhe
Timothy M. MacPhe
Treasurer and Chief Accounting Officer (principal
accounting officer
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Listed and indexed below are all Exhibits filedoast of this report.

Exhibit No. Description
3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amendg
3.2 Amended and Restated -Laws (2)
10.1 Retention Agreement, dated as of June 14, 201®ceet Watts Water Technologies, Inc. and WillianMeCartney (3
31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursudo Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a) of the S&esrExchange Act of
1934, as amende
31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer purquaRule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a) of the Se@sgikxchange Act of
1934, as amende
32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursudo 18 U.S.C. 135
32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuao 18 U.S.C. 135
101.INS* XBRL Instance Documen
101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docume
101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuin
101.DEF’ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docunh
101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum
101.PRE" XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenir

*

Attached as Exhibit 101 to this report are thediwlhg formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Repmt_anguage):

(i) Consolidated Balance Sheets at July 1, 20tRGtember 31, 2011, (ii) Consolidated Statemein@perations for the Second
Quarters Ended July 1, 2012 and July 3, 2011 am&ikh Months Ended July 1, 2012 and July 3, 20iiil Qonsolidated Statements
of Comprehensive Income(Loss) for the Second QusEaded July 1, 2012 and July 3, 2011 and foSikeMonths Ended July 1,
2012 and July 3, 2011, (vi) Consolidated StatemiehCash Flows for the Six Months Ended July 1,28nd July 3, 2011, and
(vii) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

In accordance with Rule 406T of Regulation S-T,XiBRL-related information in Exhibit 101 to this @uerly Report on Form 1Q-
is deemed not filed or part of a registration staet or prospectus for purposes of sections 12 af the Securities Act, is deemed
not filed for purposes of section 18 of the ExcleAgt, and otherwise is not subject to liabilityden these sections.

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’'s QuigrReport on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-11499) toe fjuarter ended July 3,

2005.

(2) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s GuriReport on Form 8-K (File No. 001-11499) dately Ji2, 2010.

(3) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s GuriReport on Form 8-K (File No. 001-11499) datedel@i4, 2012.
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Exhibit 31.1

WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, David J. Coghlan, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on ForraQ0f Watts Water Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiormny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimlisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

€)) Designed such disclosure controls@ondedures, or caused such disclosure controlprenuddures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidh&ubsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the metin which this report is being prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control oveaficial reporting, or caused such internal cordgra@r financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting attie preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thgsteant’s disclosure controls and procedures aadgnted in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any changghie registrant’s internal control over finanaigborting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fotdigbal quarter in the case of an annual repog) tias materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intel control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alngave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

@ All significant deficiencies and midé weaknesses in the design or operation of fralerontrol over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materidlat involves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 9, 201
/s/ David J. Coghla
David J. Coghlai
Chief Executive Office

1




Exhibit 31.2

WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
[, William C. McCartney, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on ForraQ0f Watts Water Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiormny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimlisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

€)) Designed such disclosure controls@ondedures, or caused such disclosure controlprenuddures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidh&ubsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the metin which this report is being prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control oveaficial reporting, or caused such internal cordgra@r financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting attie preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thgsteant’s disclosure controls and procedures aadgnted in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any changghie registrant’s internal control over finanaigborting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fotdigbal quarter in the case of an annual repog) tias materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intel control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alngave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

@ All significant deficiencies and midé weaknesses in the design or operation of fralerontrol over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materidlat involves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 9, 201
/s/ William C. McCartney
William C. McCartney
Chief Financial Officel




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned officer of Watts Water Technolodies. (the “Company”) hereby certifies that, ts khowledge, the Company’s quarterly
report on Form 10-Q to which this certificatioraisached (the “Report”), as filed with the Secestand Exchange Commission on the date
hereof, fully complies with the requirements of @t 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Seaesitexchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”), and that the information containedhe Report fairly presents, in all materialpests, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company. This certificationtigyided solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13 leem 601(b)(32) of Regulation S-K
(“ltem 601(b)(32)") promulgated under the Secusithct of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Actij] the Exchange Act. In accordance
with clause (ii) of Item 601(b)(32), this certiftoan (A) shall not be deemed “filed” for purposdsSection 18 of the Exchange Act, or
otherwise subject to the liability of that sectiand (B) shall not be deemed to be incorporategfgrence into any filing under the Securities
Act or the Exchange Act, except to the extent thatCompany specifically incorporates it by refeen

Date: August 9, 201
/s/ David J. Coghla
David J. Coghlai
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned officer of Watts Water Technolodies. (the “Company”) hereby certifies that, ts khowledge, the Company’s quarterly
report on Form 10-Q to which this certificatioraisached (the “Report”), as filed with the Secestand Exchange Commission on the date
hereof, fully complies with the requirements of @t 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Seaesitexchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”), and that the information containedhe Report fairly presents, in all materialpests, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company. This certificationtigyided solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13 leem 601(b)(32) of Regulation S-K
(“ltem 601(b)(32)") promulgated under the Secusithct of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Actij] the Exchange Act. In accordance
with clause (ii) of Item 601(b)(32), this certiftoan (A) shall not be deemed “filed” for purposdsSection 18 of the Exchange Act, or
otherwise subject to the liability of that sectiand (B) shall not be deemed to be incorporategfgrence into any filing under the Securities
Act or the Exchange Act, except to the extent thatCompany specifically incorporates it by refeen

Date: August 9, 2012 /s/ William C. McCartney
William C. McCartney
Chief Financial Office!




